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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEEH

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Co., Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Limited

STOCK CODE
01831

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.shifangholding.com
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RESULTS

Revenues

Gross profit/(loss)
Operating loss

(Loss)/profit attributable to:

(i) Owners of the Company
(i) Non-controlling interests
Loss per share — Basic (RMB)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total debt
Total liabilities
Equity attributable to:
(i) Owners of the Company

(if) Non-controlling interests

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY
MBRERBE

WA
£/ (£8)
REFR
ATERERS (BR),/
a7l -
(i) AREMEE
(i) FEHERER
sRER
—HEX(ARE)

BEE

BER

Baf

AT BEEE#ER
(i)  AREHEE
(i) FFERES

£

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-BL¥E

2017 2016 2015 2014
“EtFE TR & ZET-RE —T-QNOF
RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETR AREFRT AR®TR
43,428 57,759 66,972 183,556
11,956 9,725 (5,849) 46,352
(58,999) (44,461) (159,294) (252,746)
(56,493) (57,129) (163,792) (304,174)
162 737 (3,388) (2,930)
(0.0390) (0.0439) (0.1755) (0.3621)
EERAE
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014
Bt —T-R& ZT-RFE —T-QNF
RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARETE AR%TR
312,323 367,427 227,070 307,040
9.113 11,350 13,579 -
64,716 67,508 81,352 100,709
239,638 294,227 140,763 211,207
7,969 5,692 4,955 (4,876)

THERARDE —T—LFFR

2013
—2-=F
RMB'000
ARETTT

270,326
76,047
(499,116)

(516,834)
2,499

(0.6153)

2013
—E-=F
RMB'000
ARETTT

595,576

82,911

502,861
9,804
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY

MBERERME

FINANCIAL RATIOS

2017
—B-tf
Gross profits margins: ERE:
(i) Overall 0] e 27.7%
(i) Newspaper advertising iy HEES 40.9%
(i) Marketing, distribution (i) BHE -D#
management, consulting BE FHh
and printing services R ENfil iR 75 24.9%
(iv)  Online services vy BERE -
() Television and radio advertising (v} @ ERREARS -
Operating margins LEREE (135.9%)
Net margins FHEE (129.7%)
Return on equity WA E R O (22.8%)
Return on assets @ BEMRE @ (18.0%)
Trade receivables turnover (days) BORWFEABX (B) 54
Trade payables turnover (days) BOREMFBEABEX(H) 609
Gearing ratio BEARILE 2.9%

Notes:

(1) Return on equity is calculated based on (loss)/profit for the year

divided by total equity.

(2)  Return on assets is calculated based on (loss)/profit for the year

divided by total assets.
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For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-BL¥E
2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE-RF ZZE-RFE ZT-QmF CZZ—=F

16.8% (8.7%) 25.3% 28.1%
(5.4%) (25.1%) 27.8% 21.4%
26.2% 7.9% 16.8% 45.0%
S 80.3% 46.8% 38.9%
S S 51.3% (4.3%)
(77.0%) (237.9%) (137.7%) (184.6%)
(97.6%) (249.6%) (167.3%) (190.3%)
(18.8%) (114.7%) (148.8%) (100.3%)
(15.3%) (73.6%) (100.0%) (86.4%)
52 148 90 171
464 241 66 50
3.1% 6.0% S =
GEE

(1) BREAEHXZRFERN (HER) TGNR AL
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) BEEBXRFAN(BE) BIRALEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2017, the Chinese economy maintained a momentum
of steady growth and continued to fare well. China’'s gross
domestic product (GDP) exceeded RMB82 trillion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 6.9%, with as many as 14 cities with
GDP exceeding RMB1 trillion. The growth momentum of the
secondary and tertiary industries achieved in the first half of the
year continued into the second half, with the emerging industry
growing at the highest speed. Added value of emerging strategic
industries increased by 11.0% for the year as compared with the
previous year, serving as the major driving force behind the overall

economic growth.

Benefited from the GDP growth and continuously enhanced
internet connections, China has become the world’s second
largest advertising market. According to the 2017 Chinese
Advertising Market Review jointly issued by Newspaper and
Magazine Branch of the China Advertising Association and
CVSC - TNS Research (CTR) Media Intelligence, total Chinese
advertising market expanded by 4.3% in 2017, with the
traditional advertising segment increasing by 0.2%. The traditional
media advertising industry in China has finally stabilized, after
many years of constant downtrend. Data in the 2017 Chinese
Advertising Market Review showed that Internet advertising
increased by 12.4%. Television advertising increased by 1.7%
in 2017, as compared with a decline of 3.7% in 2016. Radio
advertising increased by 6.9%. Traditional outdoor advertising
decreased by 0.4%. That having said, printed media remained in a
severe downtrend, with magazine advertising declining by 18.9%
and newspaper advertising suffering a decline of 32.5%, being

the biggest fall among traditional media.

BEEWED

RZE—+tF PEKEBEABREEFNER
PR BERNEE BRNEEMLE (GDP)@E
ARMESQ2EBEIT L AFREIER6.9% & H
EEEGDPRANMMMEZEIME-E= -ZE
EERBEAE LLFHNBELR PN
MEEXENKRREGZRABEZE 2FTEEMBE
FTEEZEEMEL EFIER11.0%  FELH
BMREFEENMER-

XERBERNEERENERMFETENES
BZ PEERRERE-ANESMS - RIE
FEESHERTOGMREMISHE (CTR)
BN EREFEMN (CTE—LFPEEST

BRA3% EREREETHIER0.2% - &R
HERBETRNBEE EREBESITER
BUBEBRE - (CE—tFHREESMHE
B BEET DHREESER124% EHE
ER T RNETRIIREEAE_T— L&
BR17% BAESIER6I% BHRFINES
TF20.4% © F] 2 - FEBHEEH TREBBKRAR
- R E S TR18.9% A E SRS
B R K - 3E32.5% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWEDN

The structural impacts caused by the popularity of new media and
rapidly changing life style of Chinese consumers resulted in an
unprecedented blow to Chinese newspaper industry in 2017. The
gaining of popularity of mobile terminal news, the massive shift
from offline reading to online reading, as well as the emergence
of various types of new media on social networking platforms all
contributed to the decline in circulation of the traditional print
media, resulting in a constant fall in advertising revenue since
2012.

During the year under review, the Chinese government
promulgated the Film Industry Promotion Law ( (& & &E % &
#)%) ), the first law in China’s cultural sector. The new law
implementation was designed to promote the healthy growth
of the Chinese film industry, to provide the driving force to
China’s creative industry and economic transition, and to attract
and retain talents in the creativity industry. Last year was a Year
for Promotion of Film Quality (B mE R# F) . The State
Administration of Press, Publication, Radio, Film and Television
successfully put into effect the Film Industry Promotion Law,
and implemented the reformative initiative of decentralization,
integrating delegation and regulation, and optimizing services.
These measures promoted the sustainable, healthy and prosperous
development of the film industry, brought more energy into the

market and regulated the development and market order of the

industry.

MEBNERLRPBEHEEELAEAR RN
HERNEREZE RTPEHRER_FT—+
FERAARENTE ARBSRMENE
Ko BARZEBEEERNRRBR T RRK
b UAREEBRHEBEEEHLRIFE LB
B HEYEGREZRTEARZR BEENK
ABZZE-_FEEKETENBE -

REBFR PERAFHEL (EXEXRE
E)  RPBEXERENE —EER - B
FREARETHEXTERERER HDHF
BAEEXREREEBEEREBE  URRSIK
BEAETENAT EZFEREFXRERE
Fl BEREELERBNEREFERRES
[MER] AETEREXEXSEREERE
BRAMSHEREZE N BE - PHRBEXHE
BAMTISHKFF -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Given the rapid development of new media and other forms of
online interactive advertising in recent years, China’s advertising
The

advertising market is rapidly switching from the traditional print

industry inevitably underwent structural adjustments.

media to the Internet and other new media.

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded revenue of RMB43.4 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 24.9%. The gross profit for the period was
RMB12.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 23.7%.
The gross profit margin reached 27.7%, representing an increase
of 10.9 percentage point as compared with the previous year.
During the period, the net loss after taxation decreased to
approximately RMB56.3 million (2016: approximately RMB56.4
million). With intensified competition from online new media and
the accelerated transformation of the adverting industry ecology,
the Group’s principal business of traditional newspaper advertising
was adversely affected, resulting in a decrease in revenue for the

year.

During the year under review, the Group continued to explore
opportunities in film and television projects, with the aim of
capitalising on the blooming development of the Chinese massive
film, television and cultural markets as well as the synergizing of

new media with the traditional offline cultural business of the

Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWEDN
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NEWSPAPER ADVERTISING

The business environment became more challenging in the print
media market as the market was hit by new online media. Under
the pressure and threat from the new media and the Internet, the
daily circulation and the number of printed pages of Southeast
Express operated by the Group remained unsatisfactory, resulting
in a decrease of the advertising revenue from the newspaper to
RMB7.2 million for 2017 (2016: RMB17.1 million). However, the
gross profit margin for 2017 reached a relatively high level of
40.9% as compared with a gross loss for 2016, principally due to
the adoption of cost control and efficiency enhancement measures

during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKETING AND PRINTING SERVICES

In the second half of 2017, China implemented macro-tightening
measures for the real estate market. Under such macro conditions,
the overall business contribution from the marketing and printing
services business was close to that for the corresponding period
of the previous year, attributable to the Group’s long-established
capital strength, technological edge and professional team. During
the year under review, the Group’s revenue from that segment
was approximately RMB36.2 million (2016: RMB40.6 million),
representing 83.4% of the revenue from the core businesses, and
the gross profit margin was 24.9% (2016: 26.2%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B RN WD T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Total revenue decreased by 24.9% from RMB57.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB43.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017, primarily due to the reduced
advertising spending by the Group’s customers as a result of
the combined effect of property macro-tightening measures
and switching from printed media to new media. Revenue from
newspaper advertising decreased from RMB17.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB7.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. Revenue from marketing and printing
services decreased from RMB40.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to RMB36.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by 23.7% from RMB9.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to RMB12.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. Gross profit margin improved from 16.8%
in 2016 to 27.7% in 2017, which was primarily attributable to
turnaround of gross margin of newspaper advertising from a gross
loss margin of -5.4% for 2016 to a 40.9% gross profit margin
for 2017, principally due to the adoption of cost control and

efficiency enhancement measures.

Other income

Other income decreased by 62.5% from RMB1.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to RMBO0.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. In 2016, the Group received a one-
off compensation from customers of RMB1.2 million which was

recorded as other income. No similar grant was received in 2017.

12 SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other gain

There is no other gain for the year ended 31 December 2017
while the other gain amounted to RMB3,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016 mainly represented gain on disposal of a

subsidiary.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses decreased by 31.3% from
RMB8.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to RMB5.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, mainly due to the
combined effect of decreased customer orders and the adoption
of cost control and efficiency enhancement measures during the

year.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by 38.0% from
RMB47.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
RMB66.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, mainly
due to the increase in foreign exchange loss of RMB 23.0 million
and increase in the leasing expense of RMB2.6 million, which was

partly offset by the decrease in the provision for impairment.

Loss before income tax

As a result of the above factors, loss before income tax for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB55.6 million, representing
a decrease of 1.6% as compared to loss before income tax of
RMB56.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B RN WD T

Income tax (expense)/credit

Income tax expense increased by RMBO0.8 million from income tax
credit of RMBO.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to income tax expense of RMBO0.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 as a result of the increase in taxable income from

a subsidiary providing marketing services.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a net loss for the year of RMB56.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017, mainly attributable to the
decline in advertising revenue, high staff costs and rental expense

and increase in foreign exchange loss.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

As a result of the above factors, profit attributable to non-
controlling interests decreased from profit of RMBO0.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to profit of RMBO0.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the above factors, loss attributable to owners of
the Company decreased from RMB57.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to RMB56.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group’s management monitors current and expected liquidity
requirements regularly to ensure the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its future obligations as and when they fall due.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a
net loss of RMB56.3 million and a net cash outflow of RMB115.3
million. The management closely monitors the Group's liquidity

position and is implementing measures to improve the Group's

BEEWED

RBEERELXER
AEEEEETHERERKERRDEST
Z BRAEEABRHEEESEMNRKE
HEF - REBEE-T—+tF+-A=+—H1Lt
FE AEERSEBFEARESE3IEET
FREREFEARKINSIEEBL -EEER
PERAEENTHES KT WIFETEIE
BN EAEENRSRE -

cash flow.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2017 2016
—B—tF —ET-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBEF T
Net cash used in operating activities CEEEFTRAR S F5 (34,687) (47,318)
Net cash used in investing activities REEFBMARSFE (80,477) (106,620)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEER (FTA),/
financing activities SR & 558 (122) 216,114
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BekBEE&SEEER
cash equivalents CRA) /#nFEaE (115,286) 62,176
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#HHE & NELZEEAR 182,833 109,492
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and RekHeEEEEN
cash equivalents HNEE (B598) Mz (7.369) 11,165
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRORESERRESFMEIAE 60,178 182,833

Cash flows used in operating activities
For the year ended 31 December 2017, net cash used in operating
activities amounted to RMB34.7 million, primarily attributable to

the net loss for the year amounted to RMB56.3 million.

REEBHFRARETRE
BE_T—tF+-_A=t—HLFE &%
ABATAREFRERARBIMTAEETL 2
HRERNBRFRARK6IBETAE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B RN WD T

Cash flows used in investing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2017, net cash used in investing
activities amounted to RMB80.5 million, resulted primarily from
prepayment of RMB28.0 million for the Yongtai operation right,
deposit of RMB22.0 million paid to Yongtai Government under
the framework agreement, and deposit of RMB29.9 million
paid for the proposed acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Supreme Glory Limited, but offset by the addition and disposal of

equipment.

Cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities
For the year ended 31 December 2017, net cash used in financing
activities amounted to RMBO.1 million, mainly attributable to
repayments of bank borrowings of RMB2.2 million, offset by the
capital contribution from a non-controlling interest shareholder of
RMB2.1 million.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures incurred during the year are mainly for the
renovation of office and the purchase of motor vehicles. Capital
expenditures were RMB6.5 million and RMB0.9 million for the

years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, respectively.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had pledged ownership
right of properties acquired by prepayment with carrying value
of RMB24.2 million (31 December 2016: RMB23.6 million) for

security of mortgage loans granted by a bank to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade receivables — net

BEEWED

ESRWNRE-FH

The following table sets out the aging analysis of the Group's TREIIRATEHAEEE FEUKIEN R

trade receivables at the dates indicated: B AT -
As at 31 December
BR+=ZA=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Aging analysis of trade receivables B S RWFEIENIRER D T AR T ARBTT
1 - 30 days 12308 1,133 1,645
31 - 60 days 31260H 252 1,099
61 — 90 days 61£90H 417 139
91 - 180 days 912180H 1,755 833
181 — 365 days 181%365H 272 1,838
Over 1 year —FLE 15,991 15,328
Total st 19,820 20,882
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables — J& : B 5 & Y30 T8 ol (B B 5 (13,752) (14,045)
Total trade receivables — net BB D e IE — 58 6,068 6,837

Trade receivables decreased by 10.3% from RMB6.8 million as at BORKHRIEH-_ZT—R"FET+_A=1T—HHN
31 December 2016 to RMB6.1 million as at 31 December 2017. ARB6SHEBITHA103%E " T—+F+—
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the drop in revenue A=T—HHARK618ET TEZHRNF

during the year.

LN

THERBRLAA —T—LFFR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B RN WD T

Properties held for sale

RELHEWE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREF T
Properties held for sale BrELEWE 34,519 43,774

The properties in the PRC were received in exchange of advertising
services to real estate developers in the PRC. The Group's
intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly, such rights
are recognised as properties held for sale upon the completion of
the advertising sales transaction if the related properties are ready

to be sold.

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of the
properties with reference to the market value of the properties
as assessed by an independent property valuer. After considering
such valuation, the management is of the view that the carrying
amount of the properties exceeds their fair value less costs to sell,
and therefore no further impairment provision is necessary for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB1.2 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade payables

BEEWED

B2 ENFR

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2017 2016
= e e
RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade payables B 5 BN HRIE AR®BT T AREETF T
1 - 30 days 1Z308 547 699
31 - 90 days 31E90H 598 532
Over 90 days 90H M k£ 3,368 2,939
Total Bt 4,513 4,170

Trade payables increased by 7.1% from RMB4.2 million as at
31 December 2016 to RMB4.5 million as at 31 December 2017.
Trade payables turnover days increased from 464 days for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to 609 days for the year ended 31
December 2017, which was mainly due to the longer settlement

period of payables during the year.

Indebtedness
Indebtedness consists of obligations to lenders, including

commercial banks and certain related parties and companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B RN WD T

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group obtained
mortgage loans amounting to RMB15.5 million to finance the
Group's acquisition of properties (Note 9(ii)). Transaction costs
directly attributable to mortgage loans amounted to RMB35,000.
The mortgage loans were drawn on 27 February 2015 and a
further prepayment of RMB15.5 million was made by the Group to
Xiamen Information Group Ltd. for the properties. The mortgage
loans are secured by the ownership rights of the properties and
the personal guarantees of Zheng Bai Ling and Zhang Hui, a
key management and the spouse of a key management of a
subsidiary of the Group respectively. Total consideration for the
properties is RMB22.2 million, of which the initial down payment
of RMB6.7 million was paid by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2017, the mortgage loans were classified as
current liabilities due to the related loan agreements containing a
repayment on demand clause which gives the bank unconditional
right to call the loans at any time. The mortgage terms are 7 years
and are denominated in RMB. The mortgage loans are carried at
quarterly adjusted floating interest of 1.15 times the benchmark
loan interest as prescribed by the People’s Bank of China for loans
of a similar length. The effective interest rate for the year was

5.71% per annum.

Gearing ratio, being the proportion of the Group’s total
borrowings to total assets, decreased from 3.1% for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to 2.9% for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The HK$60 million facility as disclosed in the Company’'s
announcement dated 28 September 2017 was not drawn down
and was allowed to lapse on the extended drawdown deadline of
26 January 2018, due to the delay in completion of the acquisition

of Supreme Glory Limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 14 March 2018, the Group obtained banking facilities with
a facility limit of RMB100 million and a facility period from 14
March 2018 to 13 March 2019.

Commitments
Operating lease commitments — Group
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating lease are as follows:

BEEWED

RZZB-N\F=ZA+HEA AEERFRTA
EREBEEARBI00BETL BEHRE T
—NF=ZR+HEBE_ZTE-NF=A+=H-

'

REBPNAE -—FXEEH

TR HEEE RN A ERERAENREELN
T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E2—tF —T-REF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREF T
Not later than 1 year —FUT 12,952 12,425
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FUAERAFNUAT 3,351 14,957
16,303 27,382

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 218 full-time employees
(2016: 238). Total staff costs including directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2017 were RMB43.5 million (2016:
RMB45.8 million).

The remuneration of the directors is evaluated by the
remuneration committee, which also makes recommendations to
the Board. In addition, the remuneration committee reviews the
performance, and determines the remuneration structure, of the

Group’s senior management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B RN WD T

The Company operates an employee share option scheme, the
purpose of which is to incentivise or reward eligible individuals
who provide services to the Company for their contributions and
their continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Company,
and for other purposes as the Board may approve from time to

time.

Events after the reporting period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company
had issued 289,666,000 Shares at the placing price of HK$ 0.145
each on 25 January 2018 (representing 16.7% of the total issued
share capital of the Company) to not less than six independent
placees procured by the placing agent. Net proceeds from the
share issuance amounted to HK$41,057,000 (approximately RMB
33,467,000).

Prospects

Looking forward, the management expects that the film market
in China will continue to prosper. With the implementation of
the new law, local Chinese films shall account for at least two-
thirds of screening time at cinemas, thereby boosting the demand
and growth for local film production. In addition, the rise of live
webcast and online television drama series is expected to benefit
the film industry in China. With the established corporate image
and expertise in cultural, creativity and content-provision, the
Group will continue to identify investment opportunities to tap the

development of mainland film industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year under review, the Group signed a framework
agreement with the government of Yongtai County, Fuzhou City,
Fujian Province to cooperate on the establishment of “Yongtai
Kungfu Distinctive Town"” at a site of 15.6 square kilometers
designated by Yongtai Government, and later acquired a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage and
operate commercial activities such as tourism, sightseeing,
resort, culture, sports and entertainment in an operation site of
14.99 square kilometers (within the project site of 15.6 square
kilometers). The management is hopeful that the Group's
participation in the Yongtai Project can strengthen the Group’s
existing business of integrated project development, broaden the
Group's income stream in the long run and reduce its reliance on

the downtrend printed media business.

During the year under review, the Group also announced the
proposed acquisition of Supreme Glory Limited, which is engaged
in a multi-purpose media, resort and ecotourism project known as
Beijing Shihua Caves Niaoyulin (It A TENRSEM) . Subject to
completion, this project is expected to be partially completed and
commence commercial operation in 2018. The management is of
the view that this project can leverage on the Group’s established
industry experience in cultural, creativity and content-provision
and consolidate with the existing integrated project development
business of the Group. The management is also hopeful that the

project will enable the Group to diversify its revenue stream.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B RN WD T

The management expects that the market share and size of
China’s newspaper industry will continue to decline, while the
balance will continue to be tilted in favour of Internet and
mobile based advertising using precise targeting technologies,
new media channels and social networking using big data and
other new information technologies. The Group will continue to
develop its digital media distribution platform, recruit staff with
talents and experience in mobile and Internet technologies, and
strengthen the research and development team with the view to
preparing itself for the structural transformation of the media and

advertising industries.

As for the marketing and printing services, the Group will
continue to build on the solid advertising and marketing
foundation over the past to improve operational capabilities of
the team in the segment, and prudently allocate resources to
this business segment. The Group will explore more real estate
projects, especially those with profitable opportunities arising from
the comprehensive marketing services for property projects, to
sustain long-term profit contribution of the business segment to

the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsui Yiu Ming Siuming, aged 64, is an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Group. He is a famous film
director and producer in China and Hong Kong. He is the founder
and the president of Hong Kong Televisioners Association, was
awarded in 2013 “World Outstanding Chinese” by the World
Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr. Tsui holds a Master
degree from Jinan University and an honorary doctorate from
Northern University of the USA. Mr. Tsui entered film as a child
actor at the age of 5, and has been working in the film and TV
industry for more than 59 years. He has extensive experience in
operations management, and has served as senior vice president
of Asia Television Limited, chief executive officer of the Emperor
Motion Pictures Group, executive director of i-Cable Entertainment
Limited, chief operating officer of i-Cable Satellite Television
Limited and president of Sundream Motion Pictures Limited. His
film and television works have won many awards. Mr. Tsui was
executive director in China Trends Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8171) during the period from 1 April 2015 till 15 May 2015. Mr.
Tsui was appointed as an executive director of the Group on 6
December 2015 and was appointed as the chief executive officer

of the Group on 29 January 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EENGREEEBE

Mr. Chen Zhi, aged 52, is an executive Director. He is a qualified
accountant as conferred by the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chen
was a cadre of the Fuzhou Minhou Tax Bureau from 1982 to
1989 (during which he was granted leave from 1985 to 1988
to pursue his studies at Fujian Radio and Television University),
deputy section chief of the Fuzhou Economic and Technology
Development Area Tax Bureau from 1989 to 1993, and
subsequently the section chief from 1993 to 2002. He joined our
Group in 2003 and pioneered our distinctive business model of
cooperating with newspaper partners to provide integrated print
media services to advertisers, undertook the main decision-making
role in the management of our overall operations and oversaw
the strategic development of our Group. He was appointed as the
chairman, chief executive officer and an executive Director of our
Company on 9 December 2009, resigned as the chief executive
officer of the Company on 29 January 2016 and resigned as the
chairman of the Company on 25 February 2016. Mr. Chen has
accumulated more than ten years of relevant experience from
developing the business of our Group and possesses a deep
understanding of the PRC print media and advertising industries.
Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Radio and Television University
in 1988 with a diploma in financial economics. Mr. Chen is one
of our controlling shareholders. He is also a director of TopBig
International Development Limited (“TopBig International”). Mr.
Chen is the brother of Ms. Chen Min, a non-executive Director of

the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Mr. Yu Shi Quan, aged 42, is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer. He is a qualified accountant as conferred by the
Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yu was an accountant at Fujian Lan Tian
Tax Accounting Co., Ltd. from 1996 to 1997, the finance director
of Fujian Huanyu Investment Development Co., Ltd from 1997 to
1998 and the finance director of Fujian ShiFang Investment Co.
Ltd. (“Fujian ShiFang”) from 1998 to 2000. He joined our Group
in 2000 and was head of finance of Fujian ShiFang until 2008
when he became the head of finance of Olympia Media, and,
subsequently, vice president of finance of China TopReach Inc.
in 2009, and was appointed as Director of our Company on 20
December 2011. He graduated from Fujian Radio and Television
University in 1996 with a diploma in finance and accounting.
Mr. Yu has gained significant management experience from his
work with the overall financial operations of our Group and was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Group on 9 June
2014,

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Wei Dong, aged 47, is a non-executive Director. He was
appointed as our Director on 1 April 2015. He is currently the
manager of China Science & Kingwin Investment Management
Limited, a position which he has been serving for almost five years
since 19 December 2013. From January 2010 to October 2017,
he served as the managing director of Shenzhen China Science
& Kingwin Venture Capital Co., Ltd. He served as the deputy
director of business of Shenzhen China Science & Merchants
Capital Management Group Co., Ltd., from January 2003 to
December 2009. From March 1996 to December 2012, Mr. Chen
held the position as an assistant general manager of EFZ2ER &
#BBRAF (Xiamen Huamin Packaging Co., Ltd.). In addition,
he also had approximately six years of experience working in the
Local Taxation Bureau of Pingyu County, Henan Province. Mr.
Chen received his Bachelor’'s degree from the College of Online
Education (now known as College of Continuing Education) of the
Xiamen University in China in 2006, and has been enrolled in the
Executive Master of Business Administration programme of School

of Management of the Xiamen University since September 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EENEREEERRE

Ms. Chen Min, aged 48, is a non-executive Director. She
graduated from the Faculty of Arts, Fujian Normal University with
a bachelor’s degree in arts in June 1993 and a master’'s degree
in arts specialising in contemporary Chinese drama in June 2002.
She also obtained a doctorate degree in arts specialising in
theatrical aesthetics from the Central Academy of Drama in June
2006. Ms. Chen had taken up various academic teaching posts
at the College of Chinese Language and Literature Fujian Normal
University between September 1993 and May 2007 and has been
an associate professor of drama literature at the Central Academy
of Drama since May 2007. Ms. Chen has also served as a secretary
and a member of council of the China Branch of The International
Association of Theatre Critics and a member of the expert panel
of academic degrees and graduate education of the Ministry of
Education of the PRC since May 2007. She was appointed as our
Director on 20 December 2011. Ms. Chen is the sister of Mr. Chen

Zhi, an executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, aged 70, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 8 November 2010,
and is a qualified senior economist as conferred by the Fujian
Provincial Department of Personnel. Mr. Zhou was appointed as
the chairman of the Qingliu Country Party Committee in 1990.
He was engaged in the newspaper industry in the PRC and held
several positions including the deputy bureau chief and editorial
board member of Fujian Daily from 1996 to 2002, and the general
manager, senior economist and Party Committee deputy secretary
of the Fujian Daily Newspaper Group from 2002 to 2008. In
addition, Mr. Zhou was the vice chairman, and later chairman,
of the Fujian Province Newspaper Industry Association during
the same periods, before retiring in 2008. He graduated from
Fujian Provincial Party School of the CPC in 1986 with a diploma
in politics. Mr. Zhou has extensive print media experience and
expertise with particular knowledge of the Fujian newspaper

industry.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Mr. Wong Heung Ming Henry, aged 48, is an independent non-
executive Director. He was appointed as our Director on 8
November 2010. Mr. Wong took some senior positions, by serving
as the finance directors and the internal audit director, for some
multinationals, including United States and Hong Kong listed
companies engaged in fast-moving consumables, real estates,
shopping malls operation and media industry. Prior to that,
Mr. Wong had worked for two international accounting firms,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr.
Wong graduated from City University in Hong Kong in 1993 with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy and also obtained a master’s
degree in electronic commerce from the Open University of
Hong Kong in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants as well as a certified internal auditor.
Mr. Wong has accumulated more than 24 years in financing,
internal controls and corporate governance experience and is
currently serving as a chief financial officer of Frontiner Services
Group (stock code: 0500), a company listed in the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cai Jian Quan, aged 55, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 20 December 2011.
He graduated from the Anhui University of Finance Economics
with a bachelor’s degree in financial accounting in July 1984. Mr.
Cai was a finance manager of the finance department of Shanghai
Baihuo Headquarters Watches and Glasses Branch between July
1984 and June 1992. He was the general manager of the sales
department of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd. between
June 1992 and June 2002. He has also been the chairman of the
board of directors of Shanghai Guantong Investment Co. Ltd.
since September 2002.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Ching Yi, aged 43, is our company secretary. She
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor's degree in
accountancy and has accumulated more than 20 years of financial
and auditing experience. She is currently the company secretary of
Xinjiang Tianye Water Saving Irrigation System Company Limited
(stock code: 840), a company listed on the Main Bord of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Chan joined our Group in August 2010.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of ShiFang Holding Limited (the
“Company”) present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the

"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group has been
focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising businesses
by consolidating with cultural media and film media businesses in
PRC.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on pages 95 to 96

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 and proposed that

loss for the year be retained.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of

this annual report.
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The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Financial
Highlights and Summary” section on pages 5 to 6 of this annual

report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 23
May, 2018 to 25 May, 2018, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares will be registered. To determine eligibility
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road

East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May, 2018.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

(a)

Placing of 167,000,000 shares at HK$0.70 between
November and December 2015

As announced by the Company on 18 November 2015,
the Company entered into a placing agreement dated 18
November 2015 with a placing agent in relation to the
placing of 167,988,424 ordinary shares of the Company at
the placing price of HK$0.70. The placing was carried out
under the general mandate approved by the Company's
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 21 May
2015. Completion of the placing took place on 1 December
2015, with 167,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
allotted and issued to not less than six independent placees

procured by the placing agent.

The gross and net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$116.9 million and HK$114.6 million,
respectively. At the time of the placing, it was the intention
of the Company to apply the net proceeds from the placing
for general working capital of the Group. As at 31 December
2017, approximately HK$103.4 million was utilised for
general working capital of the Group as intended, including
salaries and directors’ emoluments, rental and renovation
expenses and equipment purchases of the Group's office
premises, and loan principal and interest repayment, whereas
the remaining balance of approximately HK$11.2 million was
utilised for the partial payment of deposit under the sale
and purchase agreement dated 8 May 2017 in respect of the
acquisition of Supreme Glory Limited, for the reasons and
benefits set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8
May 2017.
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(b)

Subscription of 200,000,000 shares at HK$0.80
between December 2015 and February 2016

As announced by the Company on 22 December 2015,
the Company entered into two subscription agreements
dated 22 December 2015 in relation to the subscriptions
of 200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company by
two subscribers at the subscription price of HK$0.80.
The subscriptions were carried out under the specific
mandate approved by the Company’s shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 17 February 2016.
Completion of the subscriptions took place on 19 February
2016 with 200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company

allotted and issued to the two subscribers.

The gross and net proceeds from the subscriptions were
approximately HK$160 million and HK$159 million,
respectively. At the time of the subscriptions, it was the
intention of the Company to apply the net proceeds from
the subscriptions (a) as to approximately RMB120 million
(HK$144 million) for the acquisition of 55% of the target
income right of the movie Ip Man 3 for 30 years; and (b)
the remaining balance for the general working capital of
the Group and for investment in the media business. As at
31 December 2017, HK$132 million was utilised for movie
investment as intended, HK$22.8 million was utilised for
the partial payment of deposit under the sale and purchase
agreement dated 8 May 2017 in respect of the acquisition
of Supreme Glory Limited, and the remaining HK$4.2 million

was utilized for general working capital of the Group.

(b)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERE

R-B-—HF+-AZE=-F—XE=
A B #0.80% T #200,000,000
I B 12

WM ARRR_E—RAF+A=+=
HFEFAM ARRFUMHBEHER-ZE
—AE+-A-+_BNRERE AD
BEHABMEREARREEETRE
200,000,000 AR AR E @R - ZFR
BIOBRBARARARRER-_ZE—R"F_A
THHRITHRRENIRE EHENR
EREET ZERBER T —RE=
RTNBZEK  RARIBRZMAREA
fig % }2 % 17200,000,000/% A 2 7] Ay & i
Hgo

REBASRIEABERFEI RN R1608
BEBETRIOABET RNRBREZR K
NAEERBAESREFERQHAR
B12088 T (1M4EEAT) ARKESE
& (EM3) BREKE=EERNS5% - A 30
F ROBEREAEEN —REEE
e UARAREEREEBHRE - R=F
—+tF+ZA=+—H 1328882
RETEIANEHRE  22.888FTAR
BAOXNBAHA-_T—+FRANBE
ARBERERARZEEHREEBETZ
RE MKRBI2EEBTERELAEER
W—REBES-

THERBRLAA —T—LFFR

33



34

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERE

(c)

Placing of 241,388,000 shares at HK$0.41 between

July and August 2016

As announced by the Company on 11 July 2016, the
Company entered into a placing agreement dated 11 July
2016 with a placing agent in relation to the placing of
241,388,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the placing
price of HK$0.41. The placing was carried out under the
general mandate approved by the Company’s shareholders
at the annual general meeting held on 17 May 2016.
Completion of the placing took place on 1 August 2016,
with 241,388,000 ordinary shares of the Company allotted
and issued to not less than six independent placees procured
by the placing agent.

The gross and net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$99 million and HK$97 million,
respectively. At the time of the placing, it was the intention
of the Company to apply the net proceeds from the placing
to improve the working capital position of the Group in
preparation for the prolonged deterioration of the Group’s
publishing and advertising business, amongst which (a)
approximately HK$22 million was set aside for business
development costs for the Group’s newspaper advertising
business; (b) approximately HK$9 million was set aside
for the Group’s professional fees; (c) approximately HK$9
million was set aside for the repayment of deposits of
terminated or completed projects and other receipt in
advance; (d) approximately HK$10 million was intended
for the planned budget for business development costs for
the Group's new media, movie and other cultural or media
related businesses; and (e) approximately HK$47 million
is intended for general working capital of other nature.
As at 31 December 2017, (a) the business development
budget for the Group’s newspaper advertising business was
used as to HK$12.1 million due to the reduced business
expenditure in proportion to the reduced business volume;
(b) the professional fees budget was used as to HK$5 million
and the remaining HK$4 million was set aside for unpaid
professional fees; (c) the budget reserved for the repayment
of deposits of terminated or completed projects and other
receipt in advance was only used as to HK$1 million as there
were fewer projects terminated than expected; (d) HK$59.52
million was used for the payment of deposit to the Yongtai
Government for the reasons and benefits set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 September 2017; and
(e) HK$15.38 million was already used in office overheads
(including salaries and emoluments and rental expenses)
between July and November 2017.
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(d) Placing of 299,666,000 shares at HK$0.145

between December 2017 and January 2018

As announced by the Company on 19 December 2017,
the Company entered into a placing agreement dated 19
December 2017 with a placing agent in relation to the
placing of 289,666,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
the placing price of HK$0.145. The placing was carried out
under the general mandate approved by the Company's
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 25 May
2017. Completion of the placing took place on 25 January
2018, with 289,666,000 ordinary shares of the Company
allotted and issued to not less than six independent placees

procured by the placing agent.

The gross and net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$42 million and HK$41 million,
respectively. It was the intention of the Company to apply
the net proceeds from the placing for general working

capital of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year of 2017, the Group had acquired property, plant

and equipment of approximately RMB0.9 million.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year of 2017 are set out in

note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”), or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The amount of the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
RMB109.1 million.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations have been made by the Group

during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year of 2017, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers comprised approximately 42.9% of
the Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer were approximately 13% of the Group’s total

sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year of 2017 attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 16.4% of
the Group’s total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier were approximately 9% of the Group's

total purchases.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company's
subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group's establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group has complied, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, with the relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Siuming Tsui, chief executive officer
(appointed as a Director on 6 December 2015)
Mr. Chen Zhi
(appointed as a Director on 9 December 2009)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan
(appointed on 20 December 2011)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Chen Wei Dong (appointed on 1 April 2015)
Ms. Chen Min (appointed on 20 December 2011)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren
(appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry
(appointed on 8 November 2010)
Mr. Cai Jian Quan
(appointed on 20 December 2011)

In accordance with the Articles, one-third of the Directors will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Moreover,
the Directors appointed during the year will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and will be

eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 29

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS'
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, Mr. Wong
Heung Ming, Henry, and Mr. Cai Jian Quan a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of its independent non-executive Directors

are independent.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors (save for Mr. Siuming Tsui) and the
non-executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years, which may be terminated
by not less than six months’ (in case of executive Directors) and
by not less than one month’s (in case of non-executive Directors)
notice in writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Siuming
Tsui has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of 3 years, which may be terminated by (i) the director giving
to the Company not less than six months" written notice between
1 October 2016 and 30 September 2019, or not less than three
months’ written notice thereafter, or (i) the Company giving not
less than twelve months' written notice between 1 October 2016
and 30 September 2019, or not less than three months’ written
notice thereafter. Each of the independent non-executive Director
has been appointed by the Company for a term of three years
and shall be terminable by either party by giving not less than one

month prior notice in writing.

During the year, none of the Directors had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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REMUNERATION POLICY BN R

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management  BE R AEE S M E IR B 8 0 FF M ER THK
members of the Group was based on their individual performance FRME A RIRLA R T I5 88 2 B8 B I 8T o Bt o) -
as well as market trends and practices. In addition, each of the ERTESRIENTESHERESTIBIE
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors is entitled A RN THRERITESNIEAEESRAR
to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of NEIZERNBERTE EFFHMFITHN G 0T
the bonuses payable to all the executive Directors at the sole and TR M 5E36 o

absolute discretion of the Company. Details of the remuneration

of the Directors are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the REBEE_Z—tFT_HA=+—HLFE B2

Directors) during the year ended 31 December 2017 were within NEREEE (ESERINOMESN T T5E
the following bands: g :

Number of

Senior

Management

BREERE A

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001,8 7C £ 1,000,000% 7T 2

Total: FEET 2

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN EEBAXRQARDIEERSFHN
OR DEBT SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY REF

Other than the pre-IPO share option scheme of the Company (the BRERRBIBRERZZE—ZFTF_A=+"HI
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme"”) adopted by written resolutions EHRBREIAEKMANA AR BERAREER
of its shareholders on 26 February 2010 and the post-IPO share  BERRAEETEl ([ E R AR ESATEERETSE ) -
option scheme of the Company (the “Post-IPO Share Option ARERRNBBRER_E—FF+—A/N\A
Scheme”) adopted by the written resolutions of its shareholders EARBEIAEMANARARBERAREEE
on 8 November 2010, at no time during the year of 2016 was the  BERAET & (B R AR SR EREE )
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements INRZEBE—AFE AARIEEAKEA
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by AR LR B B AR EE R
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including AZRR BB AR ] E 5 A B 88 ) iR 19 Sl (E 75 75
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate. F (BIEEH) MEE-

THERBRLAA —T—LFFR
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or

fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors held any interests in any competing business
against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities and

subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 8 November 2010, the Company adopted the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward to (i) any full-time
or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) any Directors (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or (iii) any advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or

any subsidiaries (each an “Eligible Person”).

The Board may, at any time within 10 years after the date of
approval of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, make an offer
to grant options to any Eligible Person. The Scheme will remain
in force for a period of 10 years commencing on 8 November
2010 up to 7 November 2020. The subscription price for shares
granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall be at

least the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;
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(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on

which such offer is made; or

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.

The total number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date, 73,216,512 Shares, without prior approval from the
shareholders of the Company. The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted, and yet to be exercised, under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Person (including both
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares
of the Company. Any further grant of share options in excess of

this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, if shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their associates, in any 12-month period (i) represent in
aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue,
and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000, the proposed grant of option must be approved by

the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is RMB1.00. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years from the date
of grant of the relevant option. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before the exercise of the option

except otherwise imposed by the Board.

Up to 31 December 2017, no share option had been granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this
report, the number of shares available under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 73,216,512 shares, representing approximately

5.1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the share capital and underlying shares (the
“Share(s)"”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers, were set out as follows:
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R-E—tF+-_A=1t—B EFRAQH
SEMBZEE (TR RBSRPERAIFEXV
BB AR R AR (TR |) BB R 8
BREBFMAEERINEIS2EARRAFERN
B ZRELTETAEZTETESFRS
MR ZEST RIE A& AN B R Bt 52 P B9 # 28 R
BEIWT

(i) Long position in the Company (i) REQXTNHEER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
EENR B, REEME ROBE HEBOEIL
Mr. Chen Zhi Interest in controlled corporation 166,394,696 11.49 %
and beneficial owner (note 1)
RESLE RIXEGZENEZ N BESEMAE (M$&E1)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan Beneficial Owner 892,196 0.06%
REtERE EnfEE
Notes: B 5

(1) Mr. Chen Zhi (an executive director of the Company) was
deemed to be interested in 166,394,696 Shares, comprising
(i) 7,032,655 Shares directly held by him; and (i) 159,362,041
Shares held by TopBig International Development Limited
(“TopBig International”), a controlled corporation which is

wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi.

(2) The percentage interests are calculated on the basis of
1,448,330,121 issued Shares of the Company as at 31
December 2017.

M AXRBRATEERELZEHER AR
166,394,696 R M P AR - BE(BEER
B A R7,032,655 10 R(iVHEZEHE
ENXEHEESTERERERDA ([F
FEIBR ) BT A #9159,362,041 f% AR (5 ©

(2) DHERTIERARANR_T—tF+=A
:+— 1,448,330, 121 B /TRt E -

THERARDE —T—LFFR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRRRORABERGNER

R=2—t5+-A=+—H UTAL(E
ERARARBITHA BRI BETHRR
B S R D B33 A AT AR ENE
S RO AR R AR BRAR 1) 1 25 AR ¢

Long positions in Shares: RBROBER:
Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
£ B, REmtE RHEAE EREAEDL
Shi Jianxiang Beneficial Owner 186,850,000 12.90%
g EnfBE
TopBig International Beneficial Owner (note 1) 159,362,041 11.00%
T B EmBE (k1)
Notes: B 5

(1) TopBig International is a company incorporated under the laws of
the BVI, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen, the executive director

of the Company.

(2) The percentage interests are calculated on the basis of
1,448,330,121 issued Shares of the Company as at 31 December
2017.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 December 2017.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the transactions set out below
which will be regarded as continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules and subject to the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Unless otherwise defined,
capitalised terms below has the same meanings as those defined

in the Prospectus.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Structure Contracts

Background

Fuzhou ShiFangCe Culture Media Co., Ltd. (“Original WFOE"),
which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company prior
to 24 December 2015, entered into (a) structured contracts
(the “Internet Structured Contracts”) to enable the Group to
capture the economic benefits of and obtain the effective control
over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Internet Opco” or “Beijing BaiChuanDuKe") and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Internet Opco Group”); and (b) structured
contracts (the “Publishing Structured Contracts”) to enable
the Group to capture the economic benefits of and obtain the
effective control over Beijing HongXinTu Culture Communication
Co., Ltd ("Publishing Opco” or “Beijing HongXinTu”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Publishing Opco Group”).
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Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding Foreign
Investment jointly promulgated by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC and the Ministry of Commerce
of the PRC on 31 October 2007 (last updated on 10 April
2015), foreign investors are (i) prohibited from investing in news
websites and online publication services; and (ii) restricted from
investing in more than 50% controlling stake in value-added
telecommunication and printing of publications. At the time of
the entering into of the Internet Structured Contracts and the
Publishing Structured Contracts, the Company could not directly
acquire the equity interest in Internet Opco and the controlling
equity interest in Publishing Opco. Therefore, the Company
entered into the Internet Structured Contracts and the Publishing
Structured Contracts to capture the economic benefits of and
obtain the effective control over the Internet Opco and the

Publishing Opco.

On 17 December 2015, in anticipation of the imminent disposal
of Original WFOE by the Group to an independent third party,
the Internet Structured Contracts were novated from Original
WFOE to another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. (“New WFOE" or
“Fuzhou DingCe"”). With the disposal by the Group of its equity
interests in Original WFOE, the Group ceased to be interested in
the Publishing Structured Contracts or the Publishing Opco Group.
With the novation of the Internet Structured Contracts to New
WFOE, the Group continues to consolidate the financial results of
the Internet Opco Group through the contractual arrangements

under the Internet Structured Contracts.
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Internet Opco and Internet Opco Shareholders

Internet Opco is a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC with a registered capital of RMB1 million
and principally engaged in value-added telecommunication
business, news websites, online publication services and printing
of publications. Internet Opco Group holds a Permit for Internet
Publication (BB 43 K R FF AJ 2% ) , an Operation Permit for Value-
added Telecommunication Business (118 & {5 ¥ 154 & & 7] 35
and an Operation Permit for News Publication Printing ( 7 i i
) ED I 48 & 7 7] 38

The registered capital of Internet Opco is registered as to 60%
in the name of Zheng Bo Ling (“Zheng”) and 40% in the name
of Xu Kai Ning (“Xu”, and together with Zheng, collectively the

“Internet Opco Shareholders”).

Reasons for the entering into of the Internet Structured
Contracts

The principal reasons for the entering into of the Internet
Structured Contracts were (a) to establish a contractual position
which allows the economic benefits of the businesses and
operations of the Internet Opco Group to flow to the Group; (b)
through the control of the right of nomination of directors of
Internet Opco, to monitor, supervise and effectively control the
business, operations and financial policies of the Internet Opco
Group which in turn ensure due implementation of the Internet
Structured Contracts; (c) to prevent any possible leakage of assets
to the Internet Opco Shareholders; and (d) to enable the Group to
acquire the equity interest of the Internet Opco at an agreed price,
which was fixed as a matter of relatively nominal sums and being

the lowest prices permissible under PRC law.

Save for the foreign investment restrictions described above, the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts

are not related to any other regulations or requirements.
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Key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts EBPARBENNEIEMRTK
In the summary table below, we set out the current status and the TERBVEBHALEBEEHB AR R EZE
key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts: A

Loan Agreement

B i

Equity Pledge
Agreement

I A R

Date: 17 December 2015
BE:—2—AF+_-_A++H

Parties: New Wfoe (as lender), Zheng and Xu (as borrowers)

R HNEBELE (ERERA) BRFF ((ERERA)

Loan sum: RMB600,000 (for Zheng) and RMB400,000 (for Xu)
B3EE - AR¥600,0007T (#5) & A R#400,0007T (7F)

Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated
by notice by New Wfoe
FH0F RIFEFENIEBELCERLEBILL TREHERERCF

No early repayment: Each of Zheng and Xu is not permitted to repay any loan without prior
written consent of New Wfoe.

TREFER BRAIITCGEREHI BRELCEZTLEARE TEEEMERK-

Date: 17 December 2015
A —Z2—hAF+-_A++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as pledgors), New Wfoe (as pledgee), Internet Opco
STF R (ERERA) FOEBECE (FARAA) EHBEEAR

Pledged assets: 60% equity interest in Internet Opco (by Zheng), 40% equity interest in
Internet Opco (by Xu)
EREE DMBLELF0%RE (REBEM) SHELENFI0%KRE (AFEMR)

Guaranteed obligations: To guarantee the repayment of the loans under the Loan Agreement
and the payment of the service fees under the Service Agreement.
ERES EREZRERHE THNERRIMNBREHETHREE -

Dividends: Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, New Wfoe is entitled to all of the
benefits arising from the pledged equity interests including dividends.

BB RBEBREER DS NI BBECEARNGHECERRBEENNE (BRERE) -

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Voting Right Proxy
Agreement

RERRRZEHS

Exclusive Purchase
Option Agreement
BRREREENS
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Date: 17 December 2015
BE:—2—AF+_-_A++H

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as appointers), New Wfoe (as appointee), Internet Opco

IR BEF (ERREAN) FIIABELE (FRAEZREAN) EMELELRT

Power granted: Each of Zheng and Xu granted to New Wfoe and its designee(s) the power to
exercise all relevant voting rights in Internet Opco including but not limited to those relating
to: (i) the amendment of company constitution; (ii) the appointment, election or dismissal

of the directors, supervisors or senior management; (iii) the transfer or disposal of all or part
of the equity interest in Internet Opco; (iv) the increase or reduction of capital, other capital
reorganization, dissolution or liquidation of Internet Opco: and (v) the right to inspect all
documents and information of Internet Opco.

REN BRAZERAFTIEBECEREARKERLITRERELEQRMEHEBRE
BN BRETRREATHBHERBE: VEFTARER: (WRZT EEIHEREST B
FHAERERE: (NEENEELMBEERRMBHIBYRE: (VIENSKER LB ESE
RANER HtIRAEAE BAZBEE: RVWVERERBLERFRMAX M RERET -

Restriction on equity transfer: None of Zheng nor Xu may transfer all or any part of their
equity interest in Internet Opco without the prior written consent of New Wfoe.
BREEZERT: BEXAITREALIINBECXREFLEARS TERRENERRLE
N A 2 BP SAEAA] B 0 AR

Date: 17 December 2015
A —Z2—hAF+-_A++tH

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as grantors), New Wfoe (as grantee), Internet Opco

IR R (EREEN) HMINBBELE (FRARA) EBEZERNT

Option: Each of Zheng and Xu irrevocably granted to New Wfoe or its designee(s) an
exclusive option to purchase, at any time if and when permitted under PRC laws, all or part
of their equity interests in Internet Opco at the agreed price, being the higher of (i) RMB1
million; and (ii) the lowest price permissible under PRC laws.

BEE - ERAFZETAREAFIIEEECENEBRERLEBEFERZBER  URNF
BUEEATNEMKREANEBEER (BOARKIBEET: RFPBEIER TATNREER
MEFNESE) BERSFREBRBLER AN DI AEMEDAME -
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Service Agreement

B 7% 155 =

Date: 17 December 2015
BE:—2—AF+_-_A++H

Parties: New Wfoe (as consultant) and Internet Opco (as appointer)

R N EBELE (ERER) RERBEELRR (EAZREAN)

Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated
by notice by New Wfoe
FH0F RIFFRFNIMNABECERHBHAKRLE TRIEHERERSF

Scope of services: New Wfoe agreed to provide to Internet Opco consulting services including
(i) market research; (ii) business development and market consultation; (iii) consulting services
in respect of labor matters; (iv) construction and maintenance of information networks and
network security; (v) technical support for software and technology; and (vi) other services in
relation to its business operations.

RBEE: FIHINEBECXRAEMEBMELERRRMHBARYE  BFEOTHHRE ()EEE
BEMSHA: (VEESBOBARS: (VERKREEEMBERRBEL D (VEEFREHR
itk RVyEBEBMBLERR XKLL H MR-

Service fees: The service fees are according to the nature of the service content and time
spent based on market price.

REE: REBZRREARTEERMERBKRMEFTE-

Unwinding of the Structured Contracts BERBEN

The Internet Structured Contract has not been unwound up HEAHZKEBH DHAEES DT REHE
to the date of this report. The Company does not intend to Ho-BRIEREETHOHNPNEEARRENES
unwind any Internet Structured Contract unless and until the — #EBRIRINEIRER FIW A T RIARQ FE
foreign investment restriction relating to ownership of the equity EREOBEEBEEN - WEIEIRERS
interest in Internet Opcos is lifted. When the foreign investment B AR BETEERNEREEZEESEED
restriction is lifted, the Company intends to exercise its exclusive — FHTHBREEZHEER WBEIHELEQT
purchase right under the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreement B2 AR BE AR R AR HE B E R
to acquire the entire equity interest in Internet Opco, so that FEMIELBMAERBENES EREEERTE
the Company can control the Internet Opco Group through the g

direct shareholding relationship rather than through the Internet

Structured Contracts.
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Accounting policies and financial information

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
information of the Company, its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary beneficiary. Fuzhou
DingCe (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
the Internet Structured Contracts with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
whereby Fuzhou DingCe provides consulting services to Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe and is entitled to (1) receive a substantial portion
of the economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe; (2) exercise
effective control over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an
exclusive option to purchase all or part of the equity interests
in Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent permitted by
the PRC laws. By virtue of the contractual arrangements under
the Internet Structured Contracts, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe is a
structured entity and deemed as a subsidiary of the Company
under the requirements of IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial

statements”.

When assessing whether to combine a structured entity, the
Group evaluates a range of factors, including whether (1) the
activities of the structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business needs so that the
Group obtains the benefits from the structured entity’s operations,
(2) the Group has decision-making powers to obtain the majority
of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains the majority of the benefits
of the activities of the structured entity, and (4) the Group retains
the majority of the residual ownership risks related to the assets
in order to obtain the benefits from its activities. The Group
consolidates a structured entity if an assessment of the relevant
factors indicates that it controls the structured entity. Based on the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts,
the Company consolidated the results, assets and liabilities of
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe in the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.
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PRC laws strictly prohibits foreign investment in, and ownership
of, companies engaging in news websites and online publication
services, and place significant restrictions on foreign investment
in, and ownership of, companies engaging in the value-added
telecommunication business (Chinese parties as controlling
shareholders) and printing of publications (Chinese parties as
controlling shareholders). The Company is considered as a foreign-
invested enterprise, and is required to comply with the PRC laws
and regulations applicable to foreign-invested enterprises. Due
to such restrictions, the Company are not permitted to have
and does not have direct ownership of any interest in Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe as Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, together with its
subsidiaries, holds a Permit for Internet Publication ( & B 48 £ iR =F
A[# ), an Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication
Business (12 B {5 ¥ 54L& 57 7] & ) and an Operation Permit for
News Publication Printing (TR AR ¥ ENRI 48 & 55 ] &5 ) . Instead,
the Company conducts the above operations in China principally
through contractual arrangements among its subsidiary Fuzhou
DingCe on the one hand, and Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its
shareholders, on the other. These contractual arrangements permit
the financial results of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to be consolidated
with and effectively all of the economic benefits of its business to
be transferred to Fuzhou DingCe. The contractual arrangement is
not related to any regulations other than the restriction on foreign

investment.
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For the years ended 31 December 2017, revenue generated
from the printing and online services businesses through Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe was RMB4.6 million and nil (2016: RMB4.1 million
and nil) respectively, which accounted for 10.5% and 0% of
total revenue (2016: 7.1% and 0%) of the total revenue; and
the assets of Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses
amounted to RMB34.7 million (2016: RMB32.6 million). As
Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses have not
contributed any significant profit to the Group in the past, Beijing
BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses were insignificant
to the Group respectively, of total revenue. The Company relied
on and expects to continue to rely on contractual arrangements
with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders to operate the
printing and online services business components in China. The
PRC legal advisor has advised the Company that the contractual
arrangements are in compliance with and enforceable under the
relevant PRC laws. However, there exist uncertainties regarding
the interpretation and application of PRC laws and regulations
regarding the performance and enforcement of such contractual
arrangements. As such, there can be no assurance that the
relevant PRC regulatory authorities will not, in the future,
determine that the contractual arrangements are in breach of
applicable PRC laws. If the contractual arrangements are found
to be in breach of any existing or future PRC laws, the relevant
PRC regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in
dealing with such violations, including revoking the business and
operating licenses held by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, restricting or
prohibiting any transactions between the Company and Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, imposing penalties or other requirements with
which the Company may not be able to comply, or requiring
the Company to restructure the relevant ownership, control or
operating structure of the Company or its business. The imposition
of any of these penalties or requirements could result in a material
and adverse effect on its business, and could even result in us
being required to cease the printing and online services businesses

completely.
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In addition to the possibility of administrative penalties or other
requirements being imposed upon us due to the relationships
with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders, the Company
may not be able to effectively enforce such contractual
relationships in a cost-effective manner or at all. Under the current
contractual arrangements, if Beijing BaiChuanDuKe or any of
their shareholders fails to perform their respective obligations
under these contractual arrangements, or are required to incur
substantial costs to do so, the Company may be forced to incur
substantial costs and resources to enforce such arrangements
or to rely on PRC law to obtain remedies, including specific
performance or damages, and we may not be successful in
obtaining such remedies or obtaining such remedies might be cost
prohibitive. In the event the Company is unable to enforce these
contractual arrangements, its business, financial condition and

results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd., Kunming HanDing Printing
Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. and Guizhou ShiFang Printing
Co., Ltd, which are subsidiaries of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
currently hold Operation Permits for News Publication Printing (7
B R 40 ED il 48 & 5F AT 8
& Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
currently holds a Permit for Internet Publication ( & B 48 ) b & 7]
#&)and a Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication

Business (MR EEEEBHL TR ) for the operation of www.

. Xiamen DuKe Information Science

duk.cn. Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding
Foreign Investment (9N & & % 58 H #%) jointly promulgated
by NDRC and MOFCOM on 31 October 2007 (with subsequent
revisions, the latest being the version that came into effect on
10 April 2015), news websites and online publication services are
classified as industries in which foreign investors are prohibited
from investing, and value-added telecommunication business
(Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) and printing of
publications (Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) is
classified as an industry in which foreign investors are restricted
from investing. These views have been confirmed by our PRC legal

advisor.
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The Directors believe that the Company’s structure whereby
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe's financial results are consolidated into
the Company’s financial statements as if it was a wholly-owned
subsidiary and the flow of economic benefits from its business to
the Company, places the Group in a special position in relation
to the connected transactions rules. Accordingly, notwithstanding
that the transactions contemplated under the Structure Contracts
technically constitute continuing connected transactions for
the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Directors
consider that it would be unduly burdensome and impracticable
and would impose unnecessary administrative costs on us to be
subject to strict compliance with the requirements set out under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these continuing

connected transactions.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, in relation to the transactions
regarding Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, the Company has applied
for and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict
compliance with the reporting, announcement, independent
shareholders’ approval, annual cap and agreements with fixed
term of no more than three years requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected
transactions under the Structure Contracts for so long as the

Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with the relevant Structured Contracts, no dividends
or other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to

their shareholders.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the

Structure Contracts and the above continuing connected

transactions.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive

Directors:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the continuing connected transactions carried out during
the year are in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group and have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts so that
the revenue generated by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
subsidiaries of the Company have been mainly retained by

the Group;

the continuing connected transactions were entered into
either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there
is no available comparison, on terms that are no less
favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent

third parties;

no dividends or other distributions have been made by
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to their shareholders; and
any new Structure Contracts entered into, renewed or
reproduced between Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
Company during the relevant financial period are fair and
reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Company are
concerned and in the interests of our shareholders as a

whole.
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Other than disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
needs to be disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, to report
on the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers has reported the results and their work
to the Board, confirming that the transaction has received the
approval of the Directors, has been entered into in accordance
with the relevant Structured Contracts and that no dividends or
other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to its

shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at

the date of this report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDER

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner
while balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are
encouraged to give their opinions regarding the environmental,

social and governance policies of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with

safety working environments to employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is available
on the Company’s website (www.shifangholding.com) and on the

website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Siuming Tsui

Executive Director (Chief Executive Officer)

Hong Kong
28 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance and value of achieving
high standards of corporate governance practices. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is an essential element
in maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor

confidence.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with the
former and revised code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance since the date of the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3
December, 2010, which shall also be revised from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Saved as disclosed below,
the Board considers the Company has complied with the code

provisions as set out in the CG Code.

Apart from the corporate governance aspect, which will be further
discussed in this report below, the Company has prepared and
published its first environmental, social and governance report
(the "ESG Report”) in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), which sets out
information regarding the period from 1 January to 31 December
2017, which is available on the Company’s website (www.
shifangholding.com) and on the website of the Stock Exchange

(www.hkexnews.hk).

Set out below the corporate governance principles and the
practices adopted and observed by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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S /A\Aiﬁﬂ:

Code Provision A.2.1
Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be

performed by the same individual.

The Board met regularly in the year 2017 to consider and review
the major and appropriate issues which may have affected the
operations of the Company arising from the overlap of chairman
and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship. As such, the Board
considers that the sufficient measures had been taken, and that
either the overlap of chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy
of chairmanship should not impair the balance of power and

authority between the Board and the management.

Code Provision E.1.2
Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the

Board should attend the annual general meeting.

The Board has invited Mr. Chen Zhi, an executive director and ex-
chairman of the Company to act as the chairman of the annual
general meeting of the Company which was held on 25 May
2017, as the position of the chairman of the Company has been
vacated since 1 April 2016. The Board considered that Mr. Chen
Zhi was the appropriate person to answer questions, if any, from

shareholders at the annual general meeting.
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THE BOARD

The Board provides effective and responsible leadership for the
Company in setting the strategic decision and overseeing the
Company's overall operations. The Board meets regularly and each
Director has to make decisions objectively in the best interests of

the Company and its shareholders.

Board Composition

At the date of this report, the Board comprises 8 Directors, 3 of
whom are executive Directors and 2 of whom are non-executive
Directors and 3 of whom are independent non-executive Directors.
The Composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having extensive knowledge, experience and expertise relevant
to the business operations and development of the Group. The
biographies of all Directors are set out on pages 25 to 29 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the
Directors has any other financial, business, family or other material

or relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which includes but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee made an annual review on the structure,
size and composition of the Board and where appropriate, made
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company’s business growth.
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S /A\Aiﬁﬂ:

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Under Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and

should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chen Zhi acted as the chairman and chief executive officer
(CEQ) of the Company until (a) Mr. Siuming Tsui was appointed
as the CEO of the Company on 29 January 2016; and (b) Mr. Shi
Jianxiang was appointed as the chairman of the Company on 25
February 2016. Subsequently, on 1 April 2016, Mr. Shi Jianxiang
resigned as the chairman and a director of the Company and since
then the position of the chairman of the Company was vacated.
The Company is identifying suitable candidate to fill the vacancy

of chairman.

The Board met regularly to consider and review the major and
appropriate issues which may affect the operations of the
Company arising from the overlap of Chairman and CEO and/or
the vacancy of chairmanship. As such, the Board considers that
the sufficient measures had been taken and that either the overlap
of chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship should
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board

and the management.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each of its independent non-executive Directors
the written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, based on such confirmation,

considers all independent non-executive Directors independent.
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Board Proceedings

The Company will hold at least four board meetings at
approximately quarterly intervals and will also meet at such other
times when necessary. Formal agenda of all Board meetings are
distributed to the Directors for comments and approval, generally,
at least 14 days before the meetings. Adequate time and sufficient
resources will be provided to all Directors to discharge their duties
at which the Directors actively participate and hold informed
discussions. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions

reached.
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During the period under review, the Board convened 1 REESRE E2g0MEE8M - XBREX
shareholders’ general meeting, 8 board meetings, 4 Audit € -/\AEEEEZH WMABZRZEEEH —
Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting and REMEZEg2R RIBREEEEH &
1 Nomination Committee meeting respectively. The attendance ERNREREGURESEE BEZEZET b
of individual Directors at general meetings and meetings of ZEE@NIRLZESEEHENHFERNT
the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee is as follows:
Meeting attended/held
HE/BTEERY
Shareholders’
general Audit  Remuneration Nomination
meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
BRAE Exe  ERZEE  HWEEE  REZEE
Executive Directors BIES
Siuming Tsui (Chief Executive Officer) BN (770#%) 1 8 N/A 1 1
TEHR
Chen Zhi R 1 8 N/A N/A N/A
TR TEm TER
Yu Shi Quan (Chief Financial Officer) REE(EREIKE) 1 8 N/A N/A N/A
@A TER TER
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Chen Wei Dong RER 1 8 N/A N/A N/A
TR TEm TER
Chen Min RE 1 8 N/A N/A N/A
TiEf TER TER
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Wong Heung Ming, Henry EEE: 1 8 4 1 1
Zhou Chang Ren BELC - 8 4 1 N/A
TER
Cai Jian Quan B - 8 4 N/A 1
TR
THFERBRAR —tFFR
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All the Directors have access to relevant and timely information.
They also have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the
Directors with Board papers and related materials. Where queries
are raised by the Directors, prompt and full responses will be given

if possible.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director arise, the matter will be
discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt
with by a written resolution. Independent Non-Executive Directors
with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing

with such conflict issues.

Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors. An
updated list of the Directors identifying the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is
maintained on the website of the Company and the website of

the Stock Exchange.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success and
interest of the Group through its leadership and supervision. The

principal tasks of the Board are to:

(i)  provide entrepreneurial leadership for the Company with a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables
risks to be assessed and managed;

(i) set the Company’s strategic aims, ensuring that the
necessary financial and human resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives and review its management
performance; and

(iii) set the Company’s values and standards and ensure that its

obligations to its shareholders and others are understood

and met.
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No event or condition of material uncertainties was found
that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern during the period under review. The
Directors were responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the financial statements of the Company, in
all material respects, in accordance with applicable regulatory

requirements.

Skills, knowledge, experience and attributes of Directors

All Directors of the Board served in office during the period
under review. Every Director commits to give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company. The Directors also
demonstrate their understanding and commit to high standards
of corporate governance. The Executive Director brings his
perspectives to the Board through his deep understanding of
the Group’s business. The Non-Executive Directors and the
Independent Non-Executive Directors contribute their own skills
and experience, understanding of local and global economies,
and knowledge of capital markets to the Group’s business.
The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
continuous professional development programmes for all Directors

to hone and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Induction and training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is
required to undertake an induction program to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of his duties and responsibilities.
The induction program includes an overview of the Group's
business operation and governance policies, the Board meetings’
procedures, matters reserved to the Board, an introduction of
the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and duties,
relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the
Board and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings

with senior officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).

SEEABE

A O EE A I B IRA T EATHRAEFR
B BB ARRREHBELERENSRE -
E=ZFEIRBEREERTE REKERE
RTHEEMA P2 ARB M BRE -

EERE A8 ERREH
ExeMAESE N DEYMEE - SESAH
BREAREIBRNBEARBEHK -BF
MERATHRLBOEBERKFOEEER -#
TEFERYAKEXBHRATBHERE
TABRE -HATESRBIUFRTESR
R & R e R AE By~ BN R 2 BRAE B R
TRIARHEARTGNRH  SAKEXHE
HER -AARBEERMAESLEHNEE
RUABENKBEZERRRE NIBERERH
15 55 B0 RN 38 Ko A e

o B2 5

EHERTHFATEFTASERBE A
BREGEBEREEALHEIER LR EE
BAKEEKZENEABRRNE E£28
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Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the year, all Directors had participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of
attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company's business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
In addition, all Directors have been updated on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. A summary of
training recovered by Directors for the year ended 31 December

2017 according to the records provided by the Directors is as

REBERERTARTAUERAGS FAIEES
E2EFEEXER BRIFMEFARLK
e UHRREEABE2EEMARIGHMBENE
MATHEESHELER -AFERN MEES
BEEB2MEN R LB EEBAR B EH L
EERALEENMH2EFEENSETEHR

FORE - Lo B ESRCRREHEN ETRA
REMBEMAEERENRHERER  UER
BTREAREHRFEEEATRORBHA -
RREFRHUNLSR EERBE_FT—LtF
TZAZ+T - HLEFERINEIIBRELT

follow:
Training on
corporate
governance,
regulatory
development and
other relevant topics
BRALEER.
EERER
Director == H R R ENEI
Executive: 1T
Siuming Tsui, CEO WA (TTRARSE) 4
Chen Zzhi R v
Yu Shi Quan AR v
Non-executive: IEHAT
Chen Wei Dong PR 18 3R v/
Chen Min PR &1 v/
Independent Non-executive: BIEHIT:
Wong Heung Ming, Henry = [ A 4
Zhon Chang Ren A& v
Cai Jian Quan B v
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Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the Directors. Throughout 2017 no claim had been made

against the Directors and the officers of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors (save for Mr. Siuming Tsui) and
non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years, which may be terminated
by not less than six months’ (in case of executive Directors) and
by not less than one month’s (in case of non-executive Directors)
notice in writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Siuming
Tsui has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of 3 years, which may be terminated by (i) the director giving
to the Company not less than six months’ written notice between
1 October 2016 and 30 September 2019, or not less than three
months’ written notice thereafter, or (i) the Company giving not
less than twelve months" written notice between 1 October 2016
and 30 September 2019, or not less than three months’ written
notice thereafter. The independent non-executive Directors have
been appointed for a term of three years and shall be terminable
by either party giving not less than one month prior notice in
writing. The Directors have power at any time and from time to
time to appoint any person to be a Director, either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting of our Company and shall then be eligible for re-election
at that meeting. In accordance with the Articles of the Company,
at every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of
the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be

subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At
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Relationships and associations among the Directors
Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi. Save as disclosed,
there was no relationship between members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationship(s)).

Company secretary

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each
meeting of the Board or the Board committees including any
which should

be made available to all Directors for inspection. She is also

dissenting views expressed by the Directors,

responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
document are required to be sent out at least 3 days prior to the
intended dates of the Board meetings or meetings of the Board
committees. It is the responsibility of the Company Secretary to
send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings
of the Board or the Board committees are also required to be sent
to all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board

procedures and all applicable laws are followed.
Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all
Directors updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as

well as internal codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that she

had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of the Company of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") as set forth in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct for dealing in securities by the Directors
of the Company. Specific enquiries have been made with all the
Directors of the Company and all of them confirmed and declared
that they have complied with the required standards as set out
in the Model Code during the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established on 8 November, 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, all are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (Chairman), Mr.
Zhou Chang Ren and Mr. Cai Jianquan.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

- To make recommendations to the Board on (i) the

appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors; (ii) the audit fee and terms of engagement of the
external auditors; and (iii) any questions of resignation or

dismissal of that auditor

- To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards
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- To monitor the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report and
accounts, interim report and quarterly financial highlights,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements

contained in those reports

- To review the adequacy and monitor the effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, internal control and

risk management systems.

- To review the financial reporting system, risk management

and internal control system.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the external auditor, the annual results and
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December,
2017, including the accounting policies and practice adopted by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
had performed their primary duties to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and the internal control procedures of
the Company. The Audit Committee has also held meeting with
the Company’s external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PwC") without the presence of executive Directors and
management, to discuss matters arising from the auditing
and report to the Board on material issues, if any, and make

recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the website of the Company and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established on 8 November, 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Zhou Chang Ren (Chairman), Mr. Siuming Tsui and Mr. Wong
Heung Ming, Henry, the majority of which are independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate and make recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration packages to the Directors and
senior management which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market

trends and practices.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the period under review:

(@) formulating and recommending the policy and structure of
the remuneration of the Directors and senior officers of the

Group to the Board;

(b) assessing individual performance of the Directors and senior

officers of the Group;

(c)  reviewing specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior officers of the Group with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives as well as individual

performances; and

(d) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on

compensation-related issues.
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 8 November, 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Cai Jian Quan (Chairman), Mr. Siuming Tsui, and
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, the majority of which are independent
non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee selects
and recommends the candidates for directorship shall base on
the criterion including professional knowledge, competence,

experience, independence and integrity.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which include but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee will review annually the structure, size
and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company’s business growth.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

REEES

$Qﬁ%:§—§¢+ ANBRIREER

B UHINAEEEARTNERDRESR

§°h%§EME%a%E%W§ EIE-Sey s
E(ER) WRIBAEERERALLE  AED

RBUFNTESZ - RELZEENIERER
IR ENZAESREFEIHERNES
SRHEBESR -RAZESERBEFEXNH

BBEREN BB BUMRBEFERIER

HEEZAR-

ARAFIERIREZESGRHENER HEE
THE k%iﬁaﬁ%m%fﬁﬁ{ﬁ L &
MBESEEAT AREN  FBERAERARAS
Ul N B AR PR AR IR & B o

ARARBER-ZZ—NE=ARMNESTS LR
%'%m§ﬁ$ GEE3 EFR(d: 0y 1)
BEARRER  Fi  XERBEER EXE
Big e ABRMRLR - BEEEERE
FROEFSMNEE FAERMAR TEEE
RIERAARNEBEERBENBESTSNE
BEE-

Bt
i3



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The following is a summary of the work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the period under review:

(a)

reviewing and evaluating the composition of the Board
with reference to certain criteria. These criteria included
qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other
relevant laws regarding characteristics and skills of the
Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as
ability to devote sufficient time to the work of the Board and
its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and

shareholders’ meetings;

reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors for re-election at the previous general

meeting; and

assessing independence of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination

Committee had performed their primary duties to review and

make recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and

composition of the Board,

including its diversity, based on a

range of perspectives with reference to the Company’s business

model and requirements, including but not limited to gender, age,

cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,

skills,

knowledge and regional experience. The Nomination

Committee considered that the current composition of the Board

is balanced in terms of diversity and is able to meet the objectives
of the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors” and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 which reflect true and fairs view of the financial position
of the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required

under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed PwC as the Group’s external auditor. The
statement by PwC regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 80

to 92 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration paid
or payable to PwC for audit services and audit-related services
amounted to RMB2,960,000 (2016: RMB2,837,000), RMB715,000
(2016: RMB773,000) respectively.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and for reviewing their
design, operational adequacy, and effectiveness on an ongoing
basis to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the assets
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee. The Board engaged an internal audit team which
carries out the analysis and independent assessment of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and reports to the Board. Review of
the Group's internal controls cover major financial, operational
and compliance controls as well as risk management functions of
different systems has been done on a systematic basis based on
the risk assessments of the operations and controls. The scope
of review for the year had been determined and approved by the
Audit Committee. Saved as disclosed below, no major issues but
areas for improvement have been identified. The Board and the
Audit Committee considered that the key areas of the Group's

internal control systems are reasonably implemented.

The Company recognises that the vacancy of chairmanship may
affect the operations of the Company. The Board has met regularly
to consider and review the major and appropriate issues. As such,
the Board considers that the sufficient measures had been taken
and the vacancy of chairmanship should not impair the balance of

power and authority between the Board and the management.
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Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate

governance duties as required under the CG Code:

(a)

to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices

on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior officers

of the Group;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct

applicable to employees and the Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the period under review, the Board considered the

following corporate governance matters:

(i)

(ii)

review of the compliance with the CG Code; and
review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and

risk management systems of the Group through the Audit

Committee.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication
with shareholders and continues to act in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps shareholders
and investors informed of its business performance and strategies
by adopting a transparent and timely disclosure policy which
complies with the Listing Rules and provides all shareholders
equal access to such information. The Company also publishes all
documents on the Company's website at www.shifangholding.

com.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") also
provides a forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the
Shareholders directly. The Directors and the committee members

are available to answer questions during the AGM.

Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and related
papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.
AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the

light of corporate governance best practices.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirements under Paragraph O of the CG
Code which is effective from 1 April 2012.
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Convening of general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

General meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting

at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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(b)

(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (as amended from time to time)
or the articles of association of the Company. However,
Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general

meeting following the procedures set out above.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company's

website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the

enquiries.

Constitutional documents

During the period under review, there had been no significant

change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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To the Shareholders of ShiFang Holding Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang Holding Limited
(the
pages 93 to 212, which comprise:

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017,

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year

then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:
. Valuation of an available-for-sale financial asset

o Valuation of the Group's properties held for sale
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Key Audit Matter
HREETER

Valuation of an available-for-sale financial asset

—RAHLEEMEENLEE

Refer to note 2.9 and note 2.11(b) (Accounting policies),
note 4(a) (Critical accounting estimates and assumptions)
and note 12 (Available-for-sale financial asset) to the
consolidated financial statements

B2HE M BBEMT2.9RMT2.11(0) (FFTEEK) - W&
Aa) (B EHEET MERR) KM F12(AIHEESREE)

On 22 February 2016, the Group entered into a movie
investment agreement with a movie executive producer in
China (the "Counterparty”) pursuant to which the Group
has agreed to acquire 55% of the target income right of a
movie (the “Movie Income Right”). The Movie Income Right
has been classified as an available-for-sale financial asset
with an initial carrying amount of approximately RMB111.0
million and measured at fair value in subsequent reporting
periods. Management has estimated the fair value of the
Movie Income Right according to the Group’s accounting
policies and has determined that the fair value of the Movie
Income Right was approximately RMB84.7 million as at 31
December 2017.
RZE-—XRF_AZ+=ZH - EHfEEFE-REXLm
RANIRGEF DAL HEZREHZ B HEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHETNMEERRRTEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s

judgements used to estimate the fair value of the

Movie Income Right included:

BAFIBLE

2 E R ARG ER g D E e HIE A

BREFeE:

(i)

Discussing with management to understand
the streams of income which the Group is
entitled to receive pursuant to the terms of
the Movie Income Right and corroborating
findings from the discussion with evidence
gathered through review of the Movie Income
Right agreement, the Group's correspondence
with the Counterparty and written advice
from the Group's external legal counsel,
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R EE:

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRESBR BEMHEFNMEERRERTEE

Valuation of an available-for-sale financial asset

—RBAHLELBEENLTE

(ii)

(ii)

Considering the reasonableness of the
management’s judgements over the expected
timing of settlement and applicable discount
rate with reference to the Group’s on-
going liaison with the Counterparty about
settlement of the outstanding amounts,
our knowledge of the industry, external
information regarding the Counterparty’s
credit profile and available market information
of the costs of capital of similar movie
executive producers in China; and
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Key Audit Matter
HREETER

Valuation of an available-for-sale financial asset

—RAHLEEMEENLEE

Refer to note 2.9 and note 2.11(b) (Accounting policies),
note 4(a) (Critical accounting estimates and assumptions)
and note 12 (Available-for-sale financial asset) to the
consolidated financial statements

B2HE M BBEMT2.9RMT2.11(0) (FFTEEK) - W&
Aa) (B EHEET MERR) KM F12(AIHEESREE)

Management’s estimation of the Movie Income Right's
fair value involved the use of management judgements to
evaluate the streams of income which the Group is entitled
to under the terms of the Movie Income Right agreement
as supported by an external legal advice, expected timing of

settlement, applicable discount rate and credit profile of the

Counterparty.
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BEREMGEANBERER AHKREES ERAFRERER
SHFOEEREEFF-

We focused on this area due to the significant management
judgements used to estimate the fair value of the Movie
Income Right.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHETNMEERRRTEE

(ili) Considering management'’s sensitivity analysis
with respect to variations of expected time
to collect the outstanding payments and
discount rates, to evaluate the extent to which
reasonably possible changes, both individually
and in aggregate, would result in material
changes in the fair value of the Movie Income
Right.

(i) ZRE TR BT b T P A A9 78 B U o B 5 &
FIRENGRE SN AT EESEEE AR

e (ER LA A EY WEED
NAEEKNERE

Based on the above, we found management’s
judgements and estimates used to determine
the fair value of the Movie Income Right to be
supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
HREETER

Valuation of the Group's properties held for sale

BEEFFLEYEAIGE

Refer to note 2.8 (Accounting policies), note 4(b) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and note 11
(Properties held for sale) to the consolidated financial
statements

ELHE MM B mRME2.8(FEIR) - MiFEab) (B
Gt e RBRHR) KT 11 (FELHEWE)

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The net carrying value of the Group’s
properties held for sale was RMB34.5 million as at 31
December 2017.

BEEERAEETHIFLEVE ZSVEREAERAR
ERLERAREEI R BREFFHENER-F

—+tF+ A=+ —HENEEFEAARKIMSAEE T

Management engaged an independent valuer to
appraise the value of the properties held for sale using
the direct market comparable approach and income
approach. Management assessed the appropriateness of
methodologies and assumptions underlying the valuations
performed by the independent valuer.

IR E R BB A E R A TS BUE RIRA KR (A H51E
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R EE:

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHETNAEERREETER

Our procedures in relation to management’s judgement
and estimates used to determine the fair value less
costs to sell of the Group’s properties held for sale
included:

BIRERERANEE BEEERELEVMENARE
A E AR E IR E HE RS RREF B

(i)  evaluating the independent valuer’s objectivity,
capability and competency to perform the
valuation;

(i) FEBUGEMESEE G MBEETH
&:
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Key Audit Matter
HREETER

Valuation of the Group's properties held for sale

BEEFFLEYFEAIGE

86

We focused on this area due to the significant
management judgement and estimates used to determine
the fair value less costs to sell and, consequentially, the
provision for loss for the Group’s properties held for sale if
necessary.

BPEILSEREENETET SEERELEMENLR
EREEXNARELGHNERRE (NBE)KAERSE
NETRE H i R fkato
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHETNAEERREETER

(ii)

(iii)

(iii)

considering the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used by the independent valuer
with reference to the nature and purposes of the
Group's properties and relevant market practice;
2R EREVMEIUMERABERUARBEBATISE
il %J‘Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ)ﬂﬁﬁﬁi%é’é}

discussing with management the appropriateness
of the selection criteria of comparable properties
and the adjusting factors used in the independent
valuer’'s valuation under market comparable
approach having regard to the location, size and
nature of the properties;
HEREN®A LB ENIEERN B EE
MRBETSLBERMELE NN RMEEMAB
MABREREREAE

Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
used in the valuation under income approach,
including expected rental income, growth rate
and discount rate, based on our knowledge of
the business and industry and comparing with
relevant market data;
BREBERFMEBBERRITEOMSE T EREK
NEETHESMANERRR (BEREDRES
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Key Audit Matter
HREETER

Valuation of the Group's properties held for sale

BEEFFLEYEAIGE

Refer to note 2.8 (Accounting policies), note 4(b) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and note 11
(Properties held for sale) to the consolidated financial
statements

ELHE MM B mRME2.8(FEIR) - MiFEab) (B
Gt e RBRHR) KT 11 (FELHEWE)

R EE:

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHETNAEERREETER

(vi)

(vi)

comparing the independent valuer's valuation
results, on a sample basis, with recent market
transaction data of similar properties; and

AR X BB L ERM A EAREEUY
RN R IHE R

inspecting the physical conditions, on a sample
basis, of the Group's properties held for sale to
evaluate management’s consideration of changes
in the properties’ conditions that would have a
material impact to the valuation results.
UHETAER ESERFFLENENERN
o ARHEEREMERYEMANES - Alae Y
HEGEREREATE-

Based on the above, we found management’s

judgement and estimates used to determine the fair

value less costs to sell of the Group’s properties held

for sale to be supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B REEN RS

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

90

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B REEN RS

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Leung Chi Hang, Benson.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
SHEERRER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
R-F—t&+=A=+—8

2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE—RF
Note RMB’‘000 RMB'000
B 2 ARET T AREFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M HE MR E 7 14,707 20,093
Intangible assets mEE 8 532 1,020
Available-for-sale financial asset A ESmERE 12 84,726 81,775
Prepayments, deposits and other BNRIE Ee R
receivables H th i e3R8 9 105,826 27,157
205,791 130,045
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 5B 10 1,224 912
Properties held for sale FIELEWE 11 34,519 43,774
Trade receivables — net EHREWFIE - F5 13 6,068 6,837
Prepayments, deposits and other ERNRE -ZER
receivables H th & W FRIB 9 3,803 2,734
Amounts due from related parties B E AT FA 30(c) 740 292
Cash and cash equivalents e kReZFEEHR 14 60,178 182,833
106,532 237,382
Total assets HWEE 312,323 367,427
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of KRBIFEEEEESR
the Company
Share capital fig 2% 15 123,919 123,919
Share premium % 17 % B 15 816,907 816,907
Other reserves HibhfEhE 16 48,904 46,980
Accumulated deficits ZatEs 4t (750,092) (693,579)
239,638 294,227
Non-controlling interests JEE R = 17(a) 7,969 5,692
Total equity REREE 247,607 299,919
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BHEERER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
K=E—t#+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE—RF
Note RMB’‘000 RMB'000
B 2 ARET T AREFIT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to a related party e —REEALFRIR 30(c) - 688
Deferred income tax liabilities BRIEFTSHAaE 18 120 240
120 928
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables B EMNIE 19 4,513 4,170
Other payables and accrued expenses  H fth & (< 0 IE & JEH B 2 19 30,464 31,628
Bank borrowings RITER 20 9,113 11,350
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT S B E 20,031 19,226
Amounts due to related parties ETRAE AT FUE 30(c) 475 206
_____ 64596 66,580
Total liabilities wmes 64,716 67,508
Total equity and liabilities EnkBEHAE 312,323 367,427

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2018 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

Siuming Tsui

R

Director

EF

REFGN T \F=ZRA-+/N\BH ALK
BHE WA THNEERREFGES:

Yu Shi Quan

REfE

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SHEEWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
B2 _F—+FF+-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE—RF
Note RMB’‘000 RMB'000
B 2 ARET T AREFIT
Revenue /PN 5 43,428 57,759
Cost of sales 8 5 B AR 22 (31,472) (48,034)
Gross profit EF 11,956 9,725
Selling and marketing expenses HERZHEMAT 22 (5,476) (7,953)
General and administrative expenses —MRITHAX 22 (66,066) (47,860)
Other gains H b Uy a5 21 - 3
Other income H At g A 21 587 1,624
Operating loss REBHER (58,999) (44,461)
Finance income 81 75 W A 24 3,381 160
Finance costs B 75 B A 24 - (12,183)
Finance income/(costs)— net FBA S (RA) —F58 24 3,381 (12,023
Loss before income tax BREF SR AIE 8 (55,618) (56,484)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i (), #H& 25 (713) 92
Loss for the year FRER (56,331) (56,392)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: DTEERMN (BE), &R
— Owners of the Company —RNABTAESE (56,493) (57,129)
— Non-controlling interests —JEIE AR = 162 737
(56,331) (56,392)

THERARDE —T—LFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B EE WK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
B2 _F—+Ff+_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B ARBTR ARET T

Other comprehensive income/(loss) HttZ2mEWzE,  (FHE)
Items that may be reclassified to A] E 37 28 2 18 2 R AR B
profit or loss
Fair value loss on an available-for-sale At ESRMEEZ AN EFIE
financial asset 12 - (7,063)
Currency translation differences BEHBRE=E 1,904 (695)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) FERhHMEmEWE ~ (FE)
for the year 1,904 (7,758)

Loss and total comprehensive loss FRAEERZHEGIELE
for the year (54,427) (64,150)

(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive L T & EHE/S (B5E) HF R

(loss)/income attributable to: 2E(F8) WHEEE:

— Owners of the Company — KRR BE (54,589) (64,887)

- Non-controlling interests —FE IR 162 737
(54,427) (64,150)

Loss per share for loss attributable ZARAOATFEEEGEEFEN

to owners of the Company BREE

— Basic (RMB per share) —EARX(BRARE) 26 (0.0390) (0.0439)

— Diluted (RMB per share) - BB (BRARE) 26 (0.0390) (0.0439)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income LGt IR /8 BEBERNT I i — OFBIE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B REREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
B2 _F—+FF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREEES
Available-for-
sale financial Capital Non-
Share Share assetfair  redemption Capital ~ Exchange  Statutory Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium  value reserve reserve reserves reserves Reserves deficits Total interests equity
e
SHEEY
e ROER AAERE RARERE BRGE EXfE ERRE BRG] #i  FERER RHAE
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
e ARMTr  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  AR®TR  ARETr  ARMTR  AR®TR  ARMTr  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZZ-tF-A-BHER 123919 816,907 (7,063) 997 41,297 (695) 12,444 (693,579) 294,221 5,692 299,919
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (56,493) (56,493) 162 (56,331)
Other comprehensive income Et2ENE
Currency translation differences EBNEES - - - - - 1904 - - 1904 - 1,904
Total comprehensive income rENEEE - - - - - 1,904 - (56,493) (54,589) 162 (54,427)
Transactions with owners BREENRS
Appropriation to statutory reserves BRZETRR - - - - - - 2 (20) - - -
Capital injection from a non-controlling RE-BHBRR-ERRRRNTE
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 2115 2,115
Total transactions with owners BREENRSEE - - - - - - 20 (20 - 2115 2115
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZF-tE+-A=t-BHEH 123919 816,907 (7,063) 997 4,297 1,209 12,464 (750,092) 239,638 7,969 247,607
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAREERR
Available-for-
sale financial Capital Non-
Share Share asset fair  redemption Capital Exchange Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium  value reserve reserve reserves Teserves reserves deficits Total interests equity
iLE
SREEL
e REE DLERE BRARDER BrGRE EXGRE ERRE ZitEn B FERER &
Note RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
Wi ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZB-AF-A-BHER 86,295 636,180 = 997 41,297 > 12,677 (636,683) 140,763 4,95 145,718
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (57,129) (57,129) 737 (56,392)
Other comprehensive income Et2ENE
Fair value loss on an available-for-sale AHHESRAR I NAEER
financial asset 7 = S (7,083) = - - - - (7,003) - (7,063)
Currency translation differences EEREEE - - - - - (695) - - (695) - (695)
Total comprehensive income 2EkELE - - (7,063) - - (695) - (57,129) (64,887) 737 (64,150)
Transactions with owners AFEENRS
Appropriation to statutory reserves BRRETRE - - - - - - 280 (280) = S S
Disposal of equity interests in subsidiaries HERBARRE - = - - - - (513) 513 - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares BTERR 15 37,64 180,727 - - - - - 5 218,351 - 218,351
Total transactions with owners EfAENRFAE 37,624 180,727 = S o o (233) 33 218351 = 218351
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZF-~Ft-A=t-BREH 123919 816,907 (7,063) 997 41,297 (695) 12,444 (693,579) 294,227 5,692 299919

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

EHBEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
B2 _F—+Ff+_A=+—HIFE

FLOWS

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt EE AR¥T R ARBF T
Cash flows from operating activities & EFHFFEBRERE
Cash used in operations KEEEAR® 28(a) (34,504) (46,766)
Interest received [EEN NS 24 430 160
Interest paid B F B (585) (711)
Income tax paid =ENRZIEE TR (28) (1)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBFARS FE (34,687) (47,318)
Cash flows from investing activities REEZBFAESHRESRE
Deposit paid for the proposed R E-—HNBAAMNES
acquisition of a subsidiary 9(iv) (29,945) -
Additions of property, plant and RNEWE BREREE
equipment 7 (881) (6,522)
Additions of intangible assets REEBFEE 8 = (15)
Deposit for township development NEEBERENZRS 9(v) (22,000) =
Prepayment for township operation right /|\ 8818 B 4% & #E /) T8 {4 318 9(v) (28,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  KE RZEE
plant and equipment FKIF 28(b) 349 938
Acquisition of an investment classified WESBEATHEESR
as available-for-sale financial asset BEZIRA 12 = (111,021)
Receipt from an investment classified ~— WHUZE B D EAAH T E 4R
as available-for-sale financial asset BEZFHE 12 = 10,000
Net cash used in investing activities HEEEFTARSFHE (80,477) (106,620)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZBHFESESRE
Capital injection from a non-controlling R & —f7 JEZE DB RN T E
interest shareholder 2,115 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BEERITERK (2,237) (2,237)
Net proceeds from issuance of BOTLBRAMERIEFE
ordinary shares 15 - 218,351
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE (FR),/ FiBIRaF58E
financing activities (122) 216,114
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RBeRBELEEEE (BY)
and cash equivalents R 5 (115,286) 62,176
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRekREEEIER
beginning of the year 14 182,833 109,492
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and ReRBFeFEEL INE
cash equivalent (E18) e (7,369) 11,165
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRNEERBEESEEEE
the year 14 60,178 182,833
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in L e pR e mER/AMEBEWH E—FBIE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

ShiFang Holding Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the "Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group has
been focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising
businesses by consolidating with cultural media and film

media business in PRC.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 9 December 2009 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2009 Revision
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is PO
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman

Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March
2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang
Holding Limited have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial asset at fair

value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(i)  Amendments to standards effective in 2017

Amendment to 1AS 7 Disclosure initiative

Amendment to IAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets
for unrealised losses
Amendment to IFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in

other entities

The adoption of these amendments to standards
did not have any material impact on the financial

statements for the current year or any prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

New standards, amendments to standards

and interpretations that are not yet effective

and have not been early adopted by the

Group

Amendment to
IFRS 1

Amendment to
IFRS 2

Amendment to
IFRS 4

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

Amendment to
IFRS 15

Amendment to
IAS 28

Amendment to
IAS 40

IFRIC 22

IFRS 16
IFRIC 23
IFRS 17
Amendments to

IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

First time adoption of IFRS!

Classification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 financial
instruments with IFRS 4

insurance contracts'

Financial instruments’

Revenue from contracts with
customers'
Clarifications to IFRS 15!

Investments in associates and joint
ventures'

Transfers of investment property'

Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration’
Leases?

Uncertainty over income tax
treatment?

Insurance contract?

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

& Effective date to be determined

A number of new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None
of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group, except the following set out below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Impact of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment

model for financial assets.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets
and liabilities. The debt instruments that are
currently classified as available-for-sale does not
meet the criteria to be classified either as at fair
value through other comprehensive income or at
amortised cost and will have to be reclassified to
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Related fair value loss of RMB$7,063,000 will
have to be transferred from the available-for-sale
financial assets fair value reserve to accumulated

deficits on 1 January 2018.
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BB HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

104

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that are not yet effective

and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)
Impact of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

(Continued)

For financial liabilities there are two classification
categories: amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss. Where non-derivative financial
liabilities are designated at fair value through
profit or loss, the changes in the fair value due
to changes in the liability’s own credit risk are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless such changes in fair value would create an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which
case, all fair value movements are recognised in
profit or loss. There is no subsequent recycling
of the amounts in other comprehensive income
to profit or loss. For financial liabilities held for
trading (including derivative financial liabilities),

all changes in fair value are presented in profit or

loss.

The implementation of IFRS 9 is not expected to
result in any significant impact on the Group's

financial position and results of operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Impact of IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’
(Continued)

The new impairment model in IFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the expected
credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary
for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure expected credit losses
as either 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
the asset and the facts and circumstances. This
new impairment model may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses on the Group's trade

receivables and other financial assets.

IFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group will apply the rule retrospectively from
1 January 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for
2017 will not be restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Impact of IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

IFRS 15 will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts
for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers
construction contracts. The new standard is
based on the principle that revenue is recognised
when control of a good or service transfers
to a customer. The standard permits either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective

approach for the adoption.

Management has assessed the impact of the
adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated
financial statements by analysing the Group’s
key revenue stream against the 5-step approach
and does not expect the adoption would have
a material impact on the timing and amounts
of revenue recognised based on the existing
business model of the Group other than

presenting more disclosures.

IFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group intends to adopt the standard using the
modified retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the adoption
will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1
January 2018 and that comparatives will not be

restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Impact of IFRS 16, ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated balance sheet, as
the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an
asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-value

leases.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group's operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB16,303,000 (Note
29(a)).

determined to what extent these commitments

However, the Group has not yet

will result in the recognition of an asset and a
liability for future payments and how this will
affect the Group’s financial performance and

classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the
exception for short-term and low value leases and
some commitments may relate to arrangements

that will not qualify as leases under IFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the

standard before its effective date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries
Consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
The

Group controls an entity when the Group is

entity) over which the Group has control.

exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date

that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance sheet

respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
It means the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements

of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

BB HRRME

2 FESTTHESE (&)

22 EOFARER (&)

(a)

THERBERAE —F—

MEAR (&)
M E B B 2 A
REBKEZEHRE RER
B (E o] OR BB R 2 A 1R 2K KA
EEHNANBEEHAE A
HAEESEEHTEREEREN
BR-REBEARIERZED
A EELEXERMEENR
Bz EAAERYKBER
SR oIN ERREMRE
WEANEREZEREBNE
MeBRMENASEEERED
EEREEXEBENFTRAA
R-EERELNEAEMEE
H&ﬁﬁﬂQEQE WEBEENHOEE
BER

B EEEK

TR 8 R R IR B T AR AR
MER T ELR - KABER
B EREEKA B RA
BSR4 R 2 R B IS R AR
BARK-

W BB BT BB A R A9 1R B B AR
B MREEBAMBARES
AR S EEM 2 E KRR A5
HMB Y M B RRIRERE
CHBANKRENFEE (B
ERE)EE M BRRAOK
Ha8 RV EHE@AKREE
TR ERIR -

m B

+FFH

109



110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Structured entity

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company,
its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary
beneficiary. Fuzhou DingCe Culture, one of
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
entered into contractual agreements with Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe (the “Structural Agreements”),
where Fuzhou DingCe Culture provides consulting
services to Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and is entitled
to (1) receive a substantial portion of the
economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe;
(2) exercise effective control over Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an exclusive option
to purchase all or part of the equity interests in
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent
permitted by the PRC laws. By virtue of the
contractual arrangements, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe
is a structured entity and deemed as subsidiary of
the Company under the requirements of IFRS 10

“Consolidated financial statements”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Structured entity (Continued)

When assessing whether to combine a structured
entity, the Group evaluates a range of factors,
including whether (1) the activities of the
structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business
needs so that the Group obtains the benefits
from the structured entity’s operations, (2) the
Group has decision-making powers to obtain the
majority of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains
the majority of the benefits of the activities of the
structured entity, and (4) the Group retains the
majority of the residual ownership risks related
to the assets in order to obtain the benefits from
its activities. The Group consolidates a structured
entity if an assessment of the relevant factors

indicates that it controls the structured entity.

Based on the contractual arrangements, the
Company consolidated Beijing BaiChuanDuKe's
results, assets and liabilities in its consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor's share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investments in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is

accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
If this

is the case, the Group calculates the amount

investment in the associate is impaired.

of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of losses of associates’
for using equity method in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided to

the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The

CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the Board of Directors (the “Board”)

that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company's functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘general and

administrative expenses'.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial positions of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(iy  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions); and

(iiiy all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

2 FESTTHESE (&)

25 ME -BERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:
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lease, whichever is shorter BH(AREES
%)
Machinery 5— 10 years 2% 52104
Fixture, furniture 5 years KE HEMKk 5F
and equipment B
Motor vehicles 5 — 10 years B 5Z 104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘General and administrative
expenses’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair

value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)

2 FESTTHESE (&)

26 BREE (&)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks and licences have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks

A& (&)
HEeEFETRERS HEA
EHHBEAERNEBE B RATREHR
BER  (FhERAZ RS BREEHE
EANIREELE BN REERA
WEEBELE TRESRRE
REEEQIAEREHEERAELD
BEMENKSE o E AR E R
AR/ BERTGREME-

BERIGTE

7 FEE AR IR R AT IR IR EE 2 K
KR -BEBAHBANER R
FRAEERKREE AR ERE
R-BREREFRERENERF
PR 3 4% A AR R ET 8 36 51 B o
WA ERE R AR RIS
AR BT A ERFREFED

At

and licences over their estimated useful lives of seven Ho
years.
Contractual customer relationships BREFBR

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate over the
expected life of the customer relationship of three

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)
Computer software and web site
Costs associated with maintaining computer software
program and web site are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique computer software and web site controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when

the following criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the computer
software and web site so that they will be

available for use;

o Management intends to complete the computer

software and web site, and use or sell them;

o There is an ability to use or sell the computer

software and web site;

o It can be demonstrated how the computer
software and web site will generate probable

future economic benefits;

. Adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the computer software and web site are available;

and
o The expenditure attributable to the computer

software and web site during their development

can be reliably measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RAR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEME ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets (Continued) 26 BREE (&)

Computer software and web site (Continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part
of the computer software and web site cost include
the software development employee costs. Other
development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense

are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Remaining computer software and web site costs
recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives and the terms of validity granted by

corresponding authorities, which are three years.

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible
assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised as

an expense as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.8

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Properties held for sale

Properties are classified as properties held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell if their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans

and receivables and available-for-sale financial

assets. The classification depends on the purpose

for which the investments were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its

investment at initial recognition. See note 3.3 for

details about each type of financial asset.

(a)

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. If collection of the amounts is
expected in one year or less they are
classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise
‘Trade receivables’, ‘Deposits and other
receivables’, ‘Amounts due from related
parties’ and ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments are designated as available-
for-sale financial assets if they do not have
fixed maturities and fixed or determinable
payments, and management intends to
hold them for the medium to long-term.
Financial assets that are not classified into
any of the other categories are also included
in the available-for-sale category. The
financial assets are presented as non-current
assets unless they mature, or management
intends to dispose of them within 12

months of the end of the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership.

When financial assets classified as available-
for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss as gains

and losses from investment securities.

2.9.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in

profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net

amount reported in the balance sheet when there is

a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a

net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must

not be contingent on future events and must be

enforceable in the normal course of business and in

the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

Company or the counterparty.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a "loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets

that can be reliably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)
The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss

include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

° The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that

the lender would not otherwise consider;

° It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;
° The disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial

difficulties; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RAR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 21 eMEERE (&)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (o) REBHEMEIENEE

2 FESTTHESE (&)

(Continued) (%)
e Observable data indicating that there is a e BT RMEEMEEGAE
measurable decrease in the estimated future EEEARKRRERER

cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets

in the portfolio, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status

of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i) national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the

assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective

evidence of impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is

impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is reclassified from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Inventories

2 FESTTHESE (&)

212178

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises
of newsprint paper and printing consumables. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for

impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three

months or less.
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BB RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

130

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,

from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a

net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current accrual and other payables in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

Full time employees of the PRC entities
participate in a government mandated
multiemployer defined contribution plan pursuant
to which certain pension benefits, medical care,
unemployment insurance, employee housing
fund and other welfare benefits are provided to
employees. Chinese labor regulations require the
Company to accrue for these benefits based on
certain percentages of the employees’ salaries.
Management believes full time employees who
have passed the probation period are entitled to

such benefits.

The Group contributes to Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF”) for eligible employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF are
held in a separate trustee administered fund.
The Company’s contributions to the MPF are

expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on performance and takes
into consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources

will be required to settle the obligation; and the

amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEME ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Provisions (Continued)

2.19 & (&)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over

the period of the facility to which it relates.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns,
rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within

the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group's activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customers, the type of

transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Newspaper advertising

The Group's role in the provision of services
on newspaper advertising is that of a principal.
When deciding the most appropriate basis for
presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both
the legal form and substance of the agreement
between the Group and its business partners are
reviewed to determine each party’s respective role

in the transaction.

Hence, revenue from newspaper advertising
services is recognised on a gross basis when
services are rendered for the creation, production
and placement of advertising materials through

all media.

Marketing services
Revenue from marketing services is recognised as

the services are delivered to the customers.

Printing services
Revenue from printing services is recognised as

the services are delivered to the customers.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at fair

value where there is a reasonable assurance that the

grant will be received and the Group will comply with

all attached conditions.

Government grants are deferred and recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income over

the period necessary to match them with the costs that

they are intended to compensate. Government grants

relating to expenses are shown separately as other

income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.

2.25 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Group has not used any
derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk
exposures.

Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

(a)

The Group operates principally in the PRC.
Majority of recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB and majority of
transactions are settled in RMB. Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from cash and
cash equivalents and deposits and other
receivables balance denominated in Hong
Kong dollar (“HKD").
not hold or issue any derivative financial

The Group does

instruments to manage its exposure to

foreign currency risk.

As at 31 December 2017, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have been
RMB3,212,000 (2016: RMB8&,191,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of HKD
denominated cash and cash equivalents and

deposits and other receivables balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(1)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
bank borrowings and bank deposits. Bank
borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by bank
deposits held at variable rates. As at 31
December 2017 and 2016, the Group does
not hold any financial assets nor financial
liabilities that are carried at fixed rates
which could expose the Group to fair value

interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risk on its variable rate bank
borrowings and bank deposits at the
balance sheet date and prepared assuming
the amount of bank borrowings and bank
deposits outstanding at each balance sheet

date was outstanding for the whole year.

At 31 December 2017, if interest rates
had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2017, would have
been RMB5,000 higher/lower (2016:
RMB1,056,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on

the bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. Credit risk
primarily arises from available-for-sale financial
assets, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties,

and bank balances.

The trade receivables mainly represent the
advertising fee due from advertising customers.
The Group generally grants to its advertising
customers a credit period ranging from one
month to one year after delivery of the relevant
advertising services. The length of the credit
period the Group grants to its customers varies by
industry and is driven by credit periods granted
by its competitors. The Group grants customers
from industries such as real estate, automotive
and telecommunications as well as those
with national brand names and its long-term
customers with large orders longer credit periods.
For short-term customers with small orders, out-
of-province customers that do not have well-
known brand names, classified advertising
customers and secondary advertising agents,
the Group usually requests that the contractual

amount be paid in full prior to delivery of service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b]

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has a credit policy with established
procedures in place, which it reviews from time
to time. The Group’s credit management team
assigns internal credit ratings to customers after
evaluation of their creditworthiness through
assessment of their particulars including business
licenses, certifications and credit rating reports
and considering factors such as operating status,
business condition, profitability, indebtedness
and assets. These internal credit ratings are used
to determine the credit-related clauses in the
sales contracts signed with customers. The Group
also prepares regular credit reports to update
its understanding of the customer’s operating
conditions and business information for better
risk management in relation to bad debts. In the
event the credit rating of a particular customer
drops after the Group’s review, it may adopt
measures such as settlement of its fee through
barter transactions, requesting the customer
to provide or procure a guarantor to provide
security or reducing the customer’s advertisement

publication volume.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group makes allowance for doubtful
accounts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade receivable, including
the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
assessed the recoverability of its trade receivables
and made impairment provision for certain trade
receivables where the recoverability has become
less than probable. Details of allowance for
doubtful trade receivables are set out in Note 13.
Determining the allowance involves significant
management judgements and estimates about
and, by definition, would seldom equal to actual
results. Any difference between management'’s
estimates of the recoverability of trade receivables
and the amounts that the Group eventually
recovers will impact the Group’s consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers
with satisfactory repayment history and no recent
history of default. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b]

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s bank balances are placed with a
number of major banks in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Counterparties’ credit risks are carefully
reviewed and in general, the Group only deals
with financial institutions with low credit risk. The
amount of counterparties’ lending exposure to
the Group is also an important consideration as a

means to control credit risk.

The available-for-sales financial asset of the
movie income right is continuously monitored by
assessing the credit quality of the counterparty,
taking into account its financial information,
historical repayment records and other factors.
Based on the historical repayment record
and the creditworthiness of the counterparty,
management believes that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of the balance
as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered

fully recoverable.

Management regularly reviews the utilisation and
recoverability of these balances and follows up
on the disputes or amounts overdue. The Group
actively monitors the credit qualities and business
development of its debtors by taking into account
of their financial positions, relationships with
the Group, credit history and other factors. The
Group also assesses on a case-by-case basis
at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence exists for impairment of these

balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

When objective evidence of impairment exists,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as
the short-fall of the expected cash receipts from
counterparties or the value in use measured
by discounted cash flow method as compared
to the carrying value of the deposits and other

receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements for
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group invests surplus cash in time deposits
and money market deposits with appropriate
maturities. The Group reported net loss of
RMB56,331,000 and operating cash outflow
of RMB34,687,000 during the year ended 31
December 2017. As at the same date, the Group
held cash and cash equivalent of RMB60,178,000
(2016: RMB182,833,000) (Note 14) and
trade receivables of RMB6,068,000 (2016:
RMB6,837,000) (Note 13) that are expected
to readily generate cash inflows for managing

liquidity risk and to fund the Group's operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
mortgage loans amounted to RMB9,113,000
(2016: RMB11,350,000) to finance the Group's
acquisition of properties. The mortgage loans
were drawn on 27 February 2015, maturity of the
mortgage term is 7 years with floating interest
adjusted quarterly. Details of the bank borrowings

are disclosed in Note 20.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.
Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain
a repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest

period in which the entity can be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HM¥ERERE (&)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEERER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) c) RBELEMR (&)
Less than Over
1 year 1 year Total
—FHUR —FH0E Bat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

At 31 December 2017 HN-E—+F
+=—A=+-—8
Trade and other payables B 5 N H R FRIE 19,341 = 19,341
Bank borrowings BITER 9,133 = 9,133
Amounts due to related parties & {<f Bg:&E A + 218 475 - 475
28,949 - 28,949
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB—RE
+t=A=+—-A
Trade and other payables B 5 MEAM BN RIE 19,963 = 19,963
Bank borrowings RAITE K 11,369 = 11,369
Amounts due to related parties & {~f B8 :&E A + 218 206 688 894

31,538 688 32,226
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total assets, as shown in the consolidated

balance sheet.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2016, was to maintain the gearing
ratio below 40%. Gearing ratio as at 31 December
2017 is 2.9% (2016: 3.1%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBEBEER (&)
(Continued)

3.3 Financial instruments by category

3.3 RERETHNEMTA

2017 2016
—E—tF A
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBT T ARBF T
Assets as per balance sheet EEBBERMINEE
Available-for-sale financials asset At ESREE 84,726 81,775
Loans and receivables: BRI EWRIE
Trade receivables and deposits and other B S ERFAURIZES K
receivables H fh fE YR IB 61,255 12,283
Amount due from related parties FE U BAE A £ 5k7E 740 292
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEESEER 60,178 182,833
Total st 206,899 277,183
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%®TR ARBEF T
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEREBERAMIINEE
Carried at amortised cost: RS BR
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E bR IR 19,341 19,963
Bank borrowings RITER 9,113 11,350
Amounts due to related parties FEA A3 A T FKIB 475 894
Total fmEt 28,929 32,207
THFERERATR —T—tFER 149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4

SES

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets
and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
as all of them are short-term in nature: cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from related parties, trade and other payables, bank

borrowings and amounts due to related parties.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
there is an available-for-sale financial asset measured
at value in use using discounted cash flow method
which is approximate to its fair value. See Note 12 for
disclosures relevant to the available-for-sale financial

asset.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
there are certain properties held for sale measured
at fair value less cost to sell using direct market
comparable approach and income approach which
are approximate to their fair values. See Note 11 for

disclosures relevant to properties held for sale.

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

No disclosure of the offsetting of financial assets and
financial liabilities is made as there are no netting

arrangements in place during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Valuation of an available-for-sale financial asset
The Group owns an investment in movie income
right which has been classified as an available-for-
sale financial asset. The management performed an
assessment on the fair value of the balance based on
discounted cash flow model which required significant
estimates, including the streams of income which
the Group is entitled, determination of appropriate
discount rate and expected timing of settlement.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of the available-for-sale financial asset in the period in

which such estimate has been changed.

4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Valuation of properties held for sale

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. In absence of current price in
an active market for similar properties which is the best
evidence of fair value, the management determined
the amount within a range of reasonable fair values
estimates. In making its estimates, the management
considers information from the valuations of properties
performed by external professional valuer by (i)
direct market comparable approach, including the
assumptions of the adjusting factors regarding to the
location, size and nature of the properties; and (ii)
income approach, including the assumptions of the
expected rent income, growth rate and discount rate to
determine the fair value. Had the Group used different
inputs or assumptions, the fair value of the properties
would be different and thus caused impact to the
consolidated income statement. Details of the valuation

of properties held for sale are disclosed in Note 11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful accounts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such a difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and bad and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances may
be required. Details of allowance for doubtful accounts

are described in Note 13.

Impairment of assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” to determine when assets are impaired,
which requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration and extent to which the recoverable
amount of assets is less than their carrying balance,
including factors such as the industry performance
and changes in operational and financing cash flows.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (a CGU). The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates, including operating
results, income and expenses of the business, future
economic conditions on growth rates and future

returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Changes in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of the assets is based could
significantly affect the Group's financial position and

results of operations.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
income tax provision and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination

is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE

Revenue from external customers are derived from the
provision of newspaper advertising services to advertisers
in the PRC and the provision of marketing and printing
services. The total sales amount of the Group’s five largest
customers is RMB18,648,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB18,445,000). An analysis of the

Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

SO B HRRME

PN

RENBEFHBRARRAFEESER
FPRHBAESRE - A RIBHE R
RRBE BE—T—+tF+-_A=+—H
HFE AEBRAREFAhHERER
AR 118,648,000 (ZE—RF: AR
#18,445,0007T) - NE B F AW A D T
wmr

2017 2016

—E—tF —T-REF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET ARETF T

Newspaper advertising WMABES 7,210 17,127
Marketing services SRS 31,668 36,515
Printing services E1 !l AR 755 4,550 4,117
43,428 57,759

During the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue derives
from a customer of the Group amounted to RMB5,633,000
which accounted for more than 10% of the Group's revenue
(2016: RMB4,484,000).

RBE-_T—+F+-_A=+—HBIHF
B REAEE-—EEFPHRARAR
#5,633,0007T ' #BR AN E A B10%
(ZZE—R"F: AR¥4,484,0007T) ©
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors have been identified as the CODM.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the CODM for the purposes

of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
Group’s advertising, marketing, and printing businesses from
both geographic and product perspectives. From a product
perspective, management takes into consideration of the
economic benefits of abovementioned businesses as a whole
when executing a centralised assessment of the performance
as the CODM considers they are mutually dependent
and inseparable. Geographically, management considers
the Group's businesses activities are included in a single
reportable segment in accordance with IFRS 8 “Operating

segments”. As such, no segment information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RO R MIEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YME -BRERZE
Fixture,
Land and Leasehold furniture and Motor
buildings  improvement Machinery ~ equipment vehicles Total
RE GRAR
ThREF HENEERE HaE RE RE .

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn

At 1 January 2016

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses

Net carrying amount
Year ended 31 December 2016

Opening net carrying amount
Additions

Transfer

Disposals

Write-off (Note 22)
Depreciation (Note 22)
Currency translation differences

Closing net carrying amount

At 31 December 2016

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses

Net carrying amount
Year ended 31 December 2017

Opening net carrying amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation (Note 22)
Currency translation differences

Closing net carrying amount

At 31 December 2017

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses

Net carrying amount

R-Z-XE-B-AH
kA = 12,778 38,447 6,769 8,611 66,605
RHFE = (4,901) (30,172) (4,937) (3,981) (43,991)
R REEE = = 2,171 S = ,171)
REZH S 7,877 6,104 1,832 4,630 20,443
H2-Z-"E+-B=1-H

LLEE
FNREFE = 7,877 6,104 1,832 4,630 20,443
RE = 4,269 4 1613 636 6,522
EF 4,681 = = = = 4,681
e - - (613) = (617) (1,230)
e (FE22) S (4,835) (62) = = (4,897)
& (H#22) S (1,809) (1,860) (749) (1,226) (5,644)
ERHREES - 159 = 3 27 218
EXREFE 4,681 5,661 3,573 2,728 3,450 20,093
R=2-AE+-A=+-8
A 4,681 7,940 32,123 8,439 8,064 61,247
2EHE = (2,279) (26,820) (5,711) (4,614) (39,424)
ZEREEE = = (1,730) = = (1,730)
REZH 4,681 5,661 3,573 2,728 3,450 20,093
BE-Z-t5+-A=1-H

LEE
FORATE 4,681 5,661 3,573 2,728 3,450 20,093
RE = 499 = 382 = 881
LE - - - = (571) (571)
& (Wi22) (234) (2,334) (1,092) (589) (1,145) (5,394)
ERBEEE - (358) = 91 (35) (302)
FXREFE 4,447 3,468 2,481 2,612 1,699 14,707
W-8-t&+-f=+-R
KA 4,681 8,104 32,123 8,770 6,720 60,398
2iiTE (234) (4,636) (27,912) (6,158) (5,021) (43,961)
2 RESE S = (1,730) e = (1,730)
FEFE 4,447 3,468 2,481 2,612 1,699 14,707
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

158

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain buildings
with net book value of RMB4,681,000 were transferred
from properties held for sale. No revaluation gain or loss nor

impairment were made upon the transfer.

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment
has been charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

M- BERRE (&)

REBE-_T—~"F+A=+—HIL#F
[ BREFEARKL681,000tHE T
BFERBELEMEEL BB ENSE
BEARENER TEELRE-

AEEHYE BERREBIFEDE T
AAREHEE KSR

2017 2016

—E—tHF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREF T

Cost of sales FIER= PN 1,194 1,341
General and administrative expenses —MBERITHAX 4,200 4,303
Total S 5,394 5,644
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RO R MIEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 EIEEE
Non-
Computer compete Customer

software agreement Goodwill  relationships Trademark Web site Total

EHBE  TREHE HE EFBR HE an @

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARETr ARETR  ARETr ARETT ARETr  ARETn
At 1 January 2016 RZE-xE-HF-AH
Cost A 3,112 11,500 12,573 14,500 9,400 8,476 59,561
Accumulated amortisation EXig 3= (2,640) (11,500) - (14,500) (5,697) (8,476) (42,813)
Accumulated impairment losses R EFE (410) - (12,573) - (2,265) - (15,248)
Net carrying amount FEFE 62 - - - 1,438 - 1,500
Year ended 31 December ~ BE-F-XF1+=B
2016 =+-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount ~ FHIREF & 62 - - - 1438 - 1,500
Additions AE 15 - - - - - 15
Amortisation (Note 22) B (Wir22) (16) - - - (479) = (495)
Closing net carrying amount ~ EREEEFE 61 - - - 959 = 1,020
At 31 December 2016 W=B-AE+=A
=t+-H
Cost KA 3,127 11,500 12,573 14,500 9,400 8,476 59,576
Accumulated amortisation RiEH (2,656) (11,500) - (14,500) (6,176) (8,476) (43,308)
Accumulated impairment losses 25t ERE (410) - (12,573) - (2,265) = (15248)
Net carrying amount FEFE 61 - - - 959 - 1,020
Year ended 31 December ~ BE-Z-t%+=A
2017 Zt-HLFE
Opening net carrying amount ~ F#15REF 61 - - - 959 = 1,020
Amortisation (Note 22) B (War22) (9) - - - (479) = (488)
Closing net carrying amount ~ ERFEFE 52 - - - 480 = 532
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tF+=f
=t+-H

Cost KA 3,127 11,500 12,573 14,500 9400 8,476 59,576
Accumulated amortisation REEH (2,665) (11,500) - (14,500) (6,655) (8,476) (43,79)
Accumulated impairment losses 23 EEFE (410) = (12,573) = (2,265) = (15,248)
Net carrying amount FEFE 52 - - - 480 - 532

The amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to

“General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

BEAESAFEERAMHEEKERN—
AR R AT R BA 2 | #Bk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

@ PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 9 HMNRE -BRERHMEWR
RECEIVABLES b |
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARETF T
Non-current portion FERBE D
Long term prepayment (note (i) RHEFEF A (BIRE®)) 138,000 138,000
Prepayment for acquisition of properties g 27 E O RN B
(note (ii)) ( Bt =% (i) ) 24,211 23,626
Deposits to a newspaper publisher (note (iii)) 4 F —RBELREHNILE
(B &£ (i) ) 30,000 30,000
Rental deposits Helke 3,300 3,531
Deposit for a proposed acquisition (note (iv)) EZFWEEENIZS
(B &E(iv) ) 28,315 -
Deposit for township development (note (v))  /NETE B BEMNZR S
(FFREW)) 22,000 -
Prepayment for township operation right NEIE R K E TR FRIE
(note (v)) (BFEEM)) 28,000 -
273,826 195,157
Less: Provision for impairment R E RS (168,000) (168,000)
Prepayments, deposits and AN I - & e R HE M ELR
other receivables — net IE—F 105,826 27,157
Current portion TENE D
Prepayment to a newspaper publisher and M — R AR AR &
others (note (vi)) E b7 E TR 8 FRIB
(B &E(vi)) 91,386 89,922
Deposits and other receivables (note (vii)) e R E A BRI
( P 5 (vii) ) 15,706 16,101
107,092 106,023
Less: Provision for impairment OB BB (103,289) (103,289)
Prepayments, deposits and TETFRIE R e KA b R
other receivables — net IE— 58 3,803 2,734




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, deposits

and other receivables are denominated in the following

SO B HRRME

ANRE REREtERR
H (&)
AEEOBEN A RS R BRI
B AR T & A T 51 M e

currencies:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF T RHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
RMB AR ¥ 77,023 26,314
HK$ BT 32,606 3,577
109,629 29,891

Long term prepayment

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, long term
prepayment represents cash paid by the Group to
a metropolitan newspaper publisher in the PRC,
namely Southeast Express, in relation to the potential
establishment of a joint venture with the metropolitan

newspaper publisher.

In view of the continuous decline in advertising
revenue associated with the exclusive advertising
rights over the years, the entire prepayment totalling
RMB 138,000,000 made to Southeast Express has been

provided for in prior years.

(i) REENFE
RZE—EFRZF-—RF+ZA
=+—HB REBENHREEAEE
SR BE B A B — K AR T R AR
(BVERm R ) NI E LB EMMA
ZEHHREMREZFHIRE -

EREBREBESENEENES
WAZFETY MRMERRLE
FTHBERFREBE2EAEAARYE
138,000,000 B R B F E 712
B

THERARDE — T LFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

Q

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

Prepayment for acquisition of properties

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, prepayment for
acquisition of properties represents the prepayment
paid by the Group to Xiamen Information Group
Ltd. for the purchase of certain commercial premises
located within Xiamen Software Park IIl. Total
consideration for the properties is RMB22,164,000, out
of which RMB15,470,000 were financed by mortgage
loans on the properties granted by a bank to the
Group. Details of the mortgage loans are disclosed in
Note 20. During the year, the Group has capitalised
borrowing costs amounting to RMB585,000 (2016:
RMB719,000) on the prepayment.

Deposit to a newspaper publisher

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, deposit to a
newspaper publisher represents cash paid by the
Group to a metropolitan newspaper publisher in the
PRC, namely Southeast Express, pursuant to exclusive
agreements between the Group and the newspaper

publisher.

In view of the continuous decline in revenue associated
with the exclusive advertising rights over the years, the
entire deposit of RMB30,000,000 made to Southeast

Express has been provided for in prior years.
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9 ENMRE RERHMEUWR
5 (%)

(ii)

(iii)

WEMENTRNRIE
RZT—tFR=ZT—XFE+=A
=+—B - KRENENBENARIEE
AEBRBEEVREMRHEE=H
METHEMEMNMEFIERER
BRARBENORIE  ZEWEDN
BRERARMK22,164,0007T - H
th AR #15,470,0007T A — KR 1T
RZEMERNAEBRRELNKIEE
R - RBERWOFBERM 20
B FA - AEEERZENKIE
18 R AR A R #585,0000T (=&
—NF: AR¥719,000T) B E
7N o

BT - RBEAHRENRE

RZB—tFR-ZFT-—RF+A
=t—B BT - FKHRALREH
BeEASERERE —RHE
AR (BRI R AL ) 7T LA
38 5K 195 % 17 ok FRAR L AR P S AN A 3R

EREBRESEMNEBBNESK
ABE T MRERRE A
2% e AR %30,000,0007T 2 A
BAEFETIREE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

@ PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(iv) Deposit for a proposed acquisition

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement signed on
8 May 2017, the Group conditionally agreed to
acquire and the sellers of Supreme Glory Limited
conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest
in Supreme Glory Limited for a consideration of
HK$340,000,000. As at 31 December 2017, the Group
paid HK$34,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB28,315,000) as a deposit for the acquisition. The
deposit is non-interest bearing and is refundable if the

acquisition is terminated.

Deposit for township development and
prepayment for township operation right
Pursuant to the framework agreement entered into by
the Group with Yongtai Government on 15 September
2017, Yongtai Government agreed to form a long-term
strategic cooperation with the Group regarding the
development and operation of the Township Project.
Under the framework agreement, the Group shall pay
a deposit of RMB50,000,000 to Yongtai Government,
which is intended to be utilised for participating in
open tender auctions to be organised by the Yongtai
Government for land use rights, assets, grant of lease
and/or operation rights circulation within the project

site.

SO B HRRME

9 FEMNRE -ZRERHMEWKR
15 (&)
(iv) ERWBEENERS
BERZE—tFRANBEEN

WERSE AEEEHKERERE
MERBERABZESFEERHERE
HTESBRERAANEIME R
{€/340,000,000 L - R =T —+
F+ZA=+—B AEEXH
34,000,000/ 7T (HHERO AR
28,315,000) fER W I ETEA RS -
ZRe TEFEETFRE (UK
BEBETUKIL) -

PMEEEHBENRSRPDEE
BREEENEANIR

REAEBEXFTERIR -F
—t+tFNATHEBILZERD

HOKBEBRAHEERRAELRLS
NERTHB BAKEE R BRE

HEEBER - BBRERBRE A&
BRRAKRBENZFiRe AR
50,000,0007T - #t A R 2 Bk R I
FI #6229 80 3R 18 B B b ) T b (55
R BE HERTR SEEE
MEHNARBERE-

THERARDE — T LFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

@ PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Deposit for township development and
prepayment for township operation right
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group entered into an operation right agreement
with the Yongtai Government for the acquisition
of a 40-years’ exclusive operation right to develop,
construct, manage and operate commercial activities
such as tourism, sightseeing, resort, culture, sports and
entertainment in the operation site at a consideration of
RMB28,000,000. The consideration of RMB28,000,000
is deducted from the RMB50,000,000 refundable
deposit placed by the Group with Yongtai Government
under the framework agreement.

As at 31 December 2017, the remaining amount of
RMB22,000,000 remained as a deposit.

Prepayment to a newspaper publisher and others

Under the terms of an exclusive advertising agreement
with a metropolitan newspaper publisher, namely
Southeast Express, the Group has to make prepayments
for print media advertising to the newspaper publisher.
The amounts prepaid to the metropolitan newspaper
publisher can be utilised as advertising costs in the

coming 12 months.

As at 31 December 2017, prepayments of
RMB89,103,000 (31 December 2016: RMB89,103,000)
were impaired and provided for. Management has
accessed the recoverability of the prepayments,
including the prepayments made to Southeast Express
of RMB83,927,000 that have been fully provided for
in prior years, and considered no further impairment
provision is required for the year ended 31 December
2017.
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9 FENMRE RERHMEUWR
5 (%)

(v)

(vi)

PREERBNRESRPDEER
BERERNENSITE ()

HE-_Z—+tF+=-_A=+—H
EFE XEBHEXFBRFNE L
—HEEEBZ RNEABHENE
AOFBREEE ARG E B
WiEITRIERE B ERN-
b BERRSEE AN ZE
REREREEELETY REAR
AR #28,000,0007T ° R (B AR #
28,000,0007T f& B A~ 5 E AR R AE 2R
BEAKTRFE XN RER
& AR #50,000,0007T FF 15 °

RZE—+F+-_A=+—8" %
T 4% AR%22,000,0007T1 A%
{_:Eo

B—RBEAHRERAEMETE
SCARN: VR

RIRE — KRR (BIRE
BR¥R L) BT S M B KB & 15 & 0 R
o AR B A ENR K8 EE R Z
¥ 4R i 7 S S TR SRR o (A1 R B
i 3% ) iR 7 SR # R IR A] A AR R 2R
TEAMESERA-

RZZE—+ttF+=ZH=+—
H- AR#89,103,000c (=%
—RNET-_A=1+—H: ARK
89,103,0007T) z FE T FRIA E 1ER
BERBEE EEECTHBEMNRE
(BREMEBERBRELIEL ZBAR
TH A R #83,927,0007t ZZ K EE
RBEFEELBHEE) 20
Wit REBEARBEE-Z—tF
+ZA=+—HUEFEELHE—F
B R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(vii) Deposits and other receivables

Deposits and other receivables primarily include cash
paid to contracted business partners as deposits for
operation rights. The deposits are interest free and are
refundable upon the expiry of the agreements or on

request under mutual consent.

As at 31 December 2017, deposits and other
receivables of RMB14,186,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB14,186,000) were impaired and provided for.
Management has assessed the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables, including those from
Southeast Express of RMB4,162,000 that have been
fully provided for in prior years, and considered no
further impairment provision is required for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

SO B HRRME

9 ENMRE RERHMEUWR

&)

(vi) &R E bR K R E

RehAEMBEFRETIZRECH
ERINEBBHERKLREEZEN
BE REBRRERARHBZEE
MR AEETRE T RESEM -

RZE—ttFE+=ZHA=+—
H' AR®¥14,186,000t (=&
—RNE+_A=Z+—H: AR%
14,186,0007T ) 2 & & I H fth J& Ui
FECERERBE BEEDT
Bl e R E 4 EKKRIE (B1E
BERBRERBLH ARS,162,000
T ZREERBEFEED B
BEINEN RAEABARBE=Z
—tFF+ A=+ —BLFEED
E—SRERE-

10 INVENTORIES 10 78
2017 2016
—E—+HF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Newsprint and printing consumables 4G K2 BRI B A an 1,224 912

BRAEAITAATHEREK] HFEEX
KA NR®2 018,000 (ZE—/KF:
AR #1,519,0007T) °

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in “Cost of sales” amounted to RMB2,018,000 (2016:
RMB1,519,000).
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11 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group's properties held for sale includes the following:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

FIFLEW=
AEEEFEHENEOEUTEA -

2017 2016

—B—tF —T—Af

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR%® TR AREETF T

Properties held for sale FELEWE 34,519 43,774

The properties in the PRC were received in exchange of
advertising services to real estate developers in the PRC. The
Group's intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly,
such rights are recognised as properties held for sale upon
the completion of the advertising sales transaction if the

related properties are ready to be sold.

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of
the properties with reference to their market value with
the assistance of an independent property valuer. Valuation
methodologies used in the valuation included direct market
comparable approach and income approach which are within
Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy respectively.
For direct market comparable approach, observable inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1 included market
price of comparable properties adjusted having regard to
the location, size and nature of the properties (Level 2). For
income approach, unobservable inputs included expected
rent income, growth rate and discount rate (Level 3). There
were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring
fair value measurements during the year. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the management compared the carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell of the properties
and considered no further impairment provision is necessary
(2016: RMB1,152,000) (Note 22).

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

TEMEIRATBEEMERBERRR
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BRBFNRNZERESHER HRERR
FiEHEME-

EEBEBUMELEMNGBET 28
MENTETHEAABEREHEEKA -
TEFTANGEEREREMSLEBIER
Wk o RIBERARERESRNE
TREZR-BHBLBEME  ATBE
AR (F—RANRERIN) BIFTT
BhBRMENTE SHEMRWEME -
RNRMEEHFE (ER) -tz
EME PABRBABEBIEESEE
WA EBRERFRE(E=ZR) -HE
HEEAAEBEFENS AFEE K-
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T—+tF+-A=+—RALEFE BEE
EhEMENEEEREAABERBEEX
R -WRRBAELE-LRERE (=
T—XF: AR¥1,152,0000T) (M
22) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

11 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued) 11 HELEWE (E)
Cash flows associated with the disposal of properties held FBRLERELEMENRERERS
for sale are presented under “Operating activities” in the HRERER(LETEH] TE27 -HE
consolidated statement of cash flows. The gain or loss on BEHEMENRENEERIFELE
disposal and impairment loss of properties held for sale are MENREEELESH2EWERD [ —
recorded in “General and administrative expenses” in the MRITHAS ] Nk

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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12 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

12 AIHESREE

2017 2016

—E—+HF ZE—RF

RMB’‘000 RMB'000

ARE TR AREFIT

Available-for-sale financial asset AHESHEE 84,726 81,775

Note:

On 22 February 2016, the Group entered into a movie investment
agreement with Shanghai Hehe Film Investment Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Hehe"”), a movie executive producer in China, pursuant to which
the Group has agreed to acquire 55% of the income right of a
movie, Ip Man 3, for 30 years. The purchase consideration of
HK$131,168,000 (equivalent to RMB110,000,000) was paid on
23 February 2016. Transaction costs that were directly attributable
to the acquisition amounted to RMB1,021,000. Shanghai Hehe
guaranteed to the Group that the total income from the income
right within 1 year after the first release date will not be less
than RMB16,500,000. During the year ended 31 December
2016, Shanghai Hehe acknowledged that the Group could, at
minimum, receive RMB128,580,000 from the investment, of which
RMB10,000,000 was already settled. The remaining balance was
due on 3 January 2017 which was 10 months after the first PRC
release date of the movie. The balance has not been settled as at 31

December 2017 and up to the date of this report.

The fair value estimate of the investment in movie income right
was based on the cash flows discounted using a rate based
on the market interest rate and risk premium specific to the
investment. Significant unobservable inputs involved in the fair
value measurement included the expected timing of settlement and
discount rate, which are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring fair

value measurements during the year.
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FREEBRAR ([LEEK] - FE—K
BEYHMARD N —MEXRERE Bt
AEERBREER (EM3) WaEERN55%:
AH0E - AEFER -_E—RE_A-+=
B {E131,168,0008 T (HER AR
110,000,0007T) < WHEEEELZHHAABA
R#1,021,0007C ° A RAAEBRFRE R
BEZTAZE —FAREENBREATE DR
AR#16,500,000 - REE T —RF+=
A=+—RALFE LEARAERAEET &
D ZIER B WA R #128,580,0007T + H
F AR %10,000,000c B 27« 82 TRRIBR =
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REEAREBRH 2B AL BB THREN
REEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

(Continued)

Changes to the following unobservable inputs can significantly

affect the cash flow projections.

BB HRRME

12 AAtHESHEE (&)

AT BRGABBEEREAEATE
RenEER -

Range of
Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs Relationship of unobservable input to fair value
TRABREABE FTAEEBARBEE THEEBAHBEAARENER
Discount rate 22% The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
#rig & TRERD  AAERR-
Expected timing of settlement Over a period of 3 years The longer the expected settlement period, the lower

the fair value.

Ta A s @ B HA REBEARA TR B R R A AERIE-.

Management has performed sensitivity analysis for the fair value of
the available-for-sale financial asset by adjusting the discount rate

and the expected timing of settlement.

Based on the sensitivity analysis, as at 31 December 2017, should
the discount rate adopted increase/decrease by 2.5%, the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial asset would be approximately
RMB2,851,000 lower/RMB2,818,000 higher (2016: RMB3,091,000
lower/RMB3,058,000 higher) than the current carrying amount.
Should the timing of settlement delayed by six months over the base
case, the fair value of the available-for-sale financial asset would be
approximately RMB8,000,000 lower (2016: RMB7,721,000 lower)

than the current carrying amount.

Management has assessed the recoverability of the investment in
the movie income right, by evaluating past settlement record and
the advice from the Group's external legal counsel, the Group's
on-going communications with Shanghai Hehe and credit profile
of Shanghai Hehe, and considered that no impairment provision is
required for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an interest income of
RMB2,951,000 (2016: interest expense of RMB12,183,000) has
been credited to finance income (2016: charged to finance costs) in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

B EEBFHBNRER LAY D
HoHLESREEZ R ABEETHR
B o

BEFXESN RZT—tF+=A
=+—8 TR ﬁWZTﬁEETLEE/TE%
25% A EEREEZANERR
BHRmEELD AR2,851,0000T,/ % AR
#2,818,000L (ZE—R"F: L ARK
3,091,0007t % A R #3,058,0007T) °
fif 4 E SRS R AR BN A - Bl
HEESREENANERREEEE
L AR #8,000,0007T ( —F — N4
b NR#7,721,0007T) °

EEEDEBTZBERELE AEE
SERERBEREZER AEE-—HHLEE
BARNEAN LBERNEERR  5HE
BEXWaBRENA KL YR ABA
REBEE_T—tF+_A=+—HL*HF
Bt RBERB (TR F &) -

HE_T—+HF+-_A=+—HIEFE"
B U AR¥2,951,000t (ZF—7
F:FERATARKI12,183,000T) B R
AEHEAREEANINBTBRA(ZE
—NE AT AMBAE) o

>l
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRME

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES — NET 13 EZREWERE-FE

2017 2016

—E—+HF ZE—RF

RMB’‘000 RMB'000

ARE TR AREFIT

Trade receivables B 5 WFRIE 19,820 20,882
Less: provision for impairment of trade R B S EBGRIERE B

receivables (13,752) (14,045)

Trade receivables — net B 5 R GTE - FE 6,068 6,837

The payment terms with customers are mainly cash on

delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30

days to 365 days after the end of the month in which the

relevant sales occurred. Aging analysis of the Group's trade

receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

BEPFEREINMNER RUARERA AR
EEHHELEBEE S A RESN
F30AE3SATF - AEENE S ENK
RERBEZARANKRRI AT

2017 2016
—g-t& —T A%
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR®T T
1 - 30 days 12300 1,133 1,645
31 - 60 days 31£260H 252 1,099
61 — 90 days 61290H 417 139
91 - 180 days 912180H 1,755 833
181- 365 days 181&2365H 272 1,838
Over 1 year —F U 15,991 15,328
19,820 20,882

Less: provision for impairment of trade R B S REMGRIBRE B
receivables (13,752) (14,045)
Trade receivables — net B oW HRIE-F5E 6,068 6,837

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are

denominated in RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
RMB2,431,000 (2016: RMB2,415,000) were past due but
not impaired. These receivables relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history
of default and the repayment periods are consistent with
the Group’s practice. The aging analysis of these trade

receivables were as follows:

13

BB HRRME

EZRWRE-FHE (&)

RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H BZEK
IBARKE2,431,0000L (ZF— K &F:
AR#2,415,0007T ) 238 BB I KR (E ©
% F FEWGRIE Y B B BN MR R A0 40 80
ZEBURF  BERAEAEBIEG —
B-ZEE5RWHIENREITAT

2017 2016
—E2—tF A

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARETF T

Past due 1 — 30 days BEI12=30H 198 230
Past due 31 — 60 days #HEA31260H 53 138
Past due 61 — 90 days #HEI612=90H 16 76
Past due over 91 days BHEI9TH M + 2,164 1,970
2,431 2,414

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
RMB13,752,000 (2016: RMB14,045,000) were impaired
and provided for. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
the amounts of the provision charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income were RMB718,000
(2016: RMB821,000). The aging of these receivables based

on due date were as follows:

RZZ—tF+ZA=1+—H BIRK
FIBARM13,752,0000T (ZZT—~"&F:
AR #14,045,0007T ) B 5 B I 51§ #
B HE-_T—tF+-RA=+—HILHF
B -REAHZERERIKRNBESER
AR#718,000t (Z T —NF: AR
821,0007T) i F E UK IERE | H1 A
HRRER AT -

2017 2016

—E—+HF =N
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
91 - 365 days 91%&365H - 300
Over 1 year — & F 13,752 13,745
13,752 14,045
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13 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET (Continued)

The provision was made as management has determined
that the ability of the debtors to repay the trade receivables
has deteriorated. This provision amount was determined in
line with the Group’s policies and historical practice, where
management has reviewed the relevant debtors’ current

creditworthiness and past payment history.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no trade
receivables (2016: nil) were directly written-off to the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment on

trade receivables are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

13 EZEWRIE -5 (&)

HREEERRZETE SR IRNE
BARERENC T Bt 28 -
BEZBAEsRNEERAEEHEM
BEEOAET MERECERERER
AR RE AR SRIE KA 8

X

BE_Z—tF+A=+—HLF
B WEESREFKIE (ZF—RF &)
BEREHEEU S RME -

i

m

AEEEZRUCKRIBBRERBNE SN
T

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZTE—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

At 1 January Rn—H—H 14,045 15,748
Provision for impairment on trade receivables & 5 [iE W 3k I8 il (B # 5 718 821
Receivables written back JE W TR B B (1,011) (2,524)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 13,752 14,045

The provision and reversal of provision for trade receivables
have been included in “General and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are
generally written off, when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash. Apart from the trade receivables
with impairment provided, the remaining trade receivables

do not contain impaired assets.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in

the following currencies:

BB HRRME

14 RERBITHER

AEEMNBREERBASEEERE AT
WA

2017 2016
—EF-tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand: RITRFHERE:
Denominated in RMB AARESHE
Denominated in HKD LA TTEHE
Denominated in USD LAZETTEHE
Maximum exposure to credit risk BEmEERR

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rate. The carrying amounts of the cash at

bank approximate their fair values.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

13,459 13,103
38,126 169,723

8,593 7
60,178 182,833
59,995 182,743

RITHRSRERRITEAERNENF
BREFE -RTREWEAEEE DR
(EREESR

HAARBTENBRLBBINEAR
KB BUINETENRITERLRAERE
B 78 38 <7 o B KA AR AR B AR B S [
& AR R K AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRME

15 SHARE CAPITAL 15 KA
Nominal Equivalent
Number of value of nominal value
ordinary ordinary of ordinary Share
shares shares shares premium Total
EER¥A LEREE ZERSEEE R EE @z
HK$ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARETR ARETT ARETT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at 31 RZE—t&ER
December 2017 and 2016 (Note (a)) —TRE
+-A=t-8
SREBETN
LR (M) 2,000,000,000 0.1
Issued: BRT:
Ordinary shares at 1 January 2016 RZZ-—~E—A—HMN
LRR 1,006,942,121 100,694,212 86,295 636,180 722,475
Issuance of ordinary shares (Note (b)) BLER (b)) 200,000,000 20,000,000 16,842 117,475 134,317
Issuance of ordinary shares (Note (c)) BOTEAR (ME0) 241,388,000 24,138,800 20,782 63,252 84,034
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January RZZE-R%
2017 and 31 December 2017 +ZA=+-Bk
“E—tf5-A—-H
NERZE—+F
+-A=+—-H 1,448,330,121 144,833,012 123,919 816,907 940,826
Notes: B 52
(@) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 9 (@ AREARZZTZNF+_ANLBERE

SHIFANG

December 2009 with an authorised share capital of HK$200
million divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.

The Company issued 200,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.8
each on 19 February 2016 (representing 16.6% of the total
issued ordinary shares of the Company as enlarged by the
issuance) to 2 subscribers. The related transaction costs of

RMB413,000 have been netted off against share premium.

The Company issued 241,388,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.41
each on 1 August 2016 (representing 16.7% of the total
issued ordinary shares of the Company as enlarged by the

issuance) to 9 subscribers. The related transaction costs of

RMB1,176,000 have been netted off against share premium.
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(b)

B Sk - A E MR A A200,000,000
77T 0 9 /42,000,000,000/% & A% & &
0.1 TTHIRL (D ©

ARBIRZZE—R"E-_A+HhBESE
BR0.87 TR (B 1% M i & 3R B A B 1T
200,000,000/% & @ ik (HHE R AR 7
KERBITEAEBDETEBREH
16.6% ) < HHEAZZ S B AR A R #413,000
ToE AR E B o

KARRZTE—A"ENA—BERSE
B%0.41 8 TR B IE M L& RIE A AT
241,388,000k E @R (BB R AR
RIRAEABETEABRERTLAR
BEI16.7%)  MHEAXIKHAARE
1,176,0007T B £ £8 AR 1) )55 B #K 45



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 RESERVES

The details of movement in the Group’s reserves are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

97:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve relates to the
redemption and cancellation of the Company’s own

shares.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves primarily represent capital
contributions to certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the differences between the consideration
and proportionate carrying value of the subsidiary
disposed of where the Group still retains control of the

subsidiary.

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves represent reserves of the PRC
incorporated companies which are set aside for
future development purpose in accordance with the
regulations in the PRC. The allocation is based on
certain percentages of these companies’ profit for the

year, as reported in their statutory financial statements.

RO R MIEE

16 &
FEBFEOEDHHFERNFITENS
BHESBER:

(a)

(b)

(c)

JR 7 FE [ % 8
P 7S [0 {6 g B2 7K 1% B P () % E 3K
REBRMER-

N R
EARBIBERAASEETHE
REIME R EEM L EHE R A
(REBDRE B2 G ) e PIRRE
BZHEERE-

EERE
AEFBETBEEMKRI TR
HER B ORETBIARR LA
B ORERBHNENRZEZRRAEE
EMBEHER AR F RN E
TEDLETERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

16 RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

Statutory reserves (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the companies’
respective Articles of Association, each of the Group
companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit for
the year, as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a statutory common reserve fund
until the fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group
company’s registered capital. The statutory common
reserve fund can be used to make good previous years’
losses, if any, and to issue new shares to shareholders
in proportion to their existing shareholdings or to
increase the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the balance after such issue is not

less than 25% of the registered capital.

Each of the Group companies is also permitted to
transfer a certain percentage of its profit for the year
as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations,
to a discretionary common reserve fund. The transfer
to this reserve is subject to approval at shareholders’

meetings.
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16 i (&)

(c)

EE A (&)
RIEFEVAR R ABZENAEABE
RAR AEEE TR QAARR
B & E AR FTE E /) F RE N B
10%\AEERTEE BEERZAE
TREAKEBAEEZET REZEM
BARH50% EEAES AN
MAEFEBR(WAE) TR
A 5 AL ) B 1T 3 AR T AR =38
0B BROR B P 4 AR D B B - M
TERNERIALDREMERD
25% °

AEEETERRTABETEE
ERMEBEENFRRNNETE
DUHBAEBRES ZEABENREA
REIRR R G e -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 SUBSIDIARIES

17

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries of the

Company as at 31 December 2017

Place of incorporation and

RO R MIEE

B B 2 =
TR ARAR -_ZT—+F+ - A
—t+—HNETEWBEAR:

Issued or registered/ Effective interest held

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities paid up capital as at 31 December
28 BREAREYFIN-F:] TEEHR BROGEM/EARE RI-A=+-BRENEREZR
2017 2016
“E-tE% ZT-RE
Directly owned subsidiary:
ERAENELAR:
Dragon Soar Ltd. The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding UsD1 100% 100%
Limited liability company
EABRRA ERRRHS BREALT RELR (o
Ysolde Group Limited Samoa, Investment holding USD50,000 100% 100%
) Limited liability company
THEREEERRAF (previously known as BEG BREMAF REZK 50,000% 7T
[BREBERAR]) (AIBERERERAR)
Graceful Universe Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding UsD1 100% 100%
Limited liability company
EEERARAR RERAHE BREENT REBR E3
ShiFang Expert Company Limited Hong Kong, Human resources HKD1 100% 100%
) Limited liability company »
THESBRAT BB BRAMAT ANER BT
Glory Peace Limited Samoa, Limited liability company Investment holding UsD1 100% -
(Note a)
REBERLA EET BRELAR REER 157 (Mizta)
Indirectly owned subsidiaries:
BEEEREAR:
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Provision of full-line USD200,000 100% 100%
Limited liability company advertising agency
B B services
BMEFE UL ERERAR HEEM BEREEAA REZHNESE 200,000% T
RERHE
Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Provision of printing RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Limited liability company services
BMTFEBERAF HEEM BEREEAA REERIRS AR 10,000,000
Fujian ShiFangYuan Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Provision of full-line RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
Limited liability company advertising agency
- - services .
BETHRESERAR HEEM EREEAA RE2HNES AR 5,000,000
RIBRT
Fuzhou DaFang Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Provision of full-line RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
i Limited liability company advertising services .
BEXFEEERAA HEEM EREEAA RE2FUEERSE  ARES5,000,0007T
Kunming HanDing Printing Technology Consulting ~ Kunming, the PRC, Provision of publishing  RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. . Limited liability company and printing services
RRERORBIRITAATRAR HERH BERREAA RELRRERRSE  AR#10,000,0007

THERARDE —T—LFFR
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17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation and

17

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

MELR (&)

Issued or registered/

Effective interest held

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities paid up capital as at 31 December
£B BREAREYFIN-F:] TEEH ERAAEM/BERET WA=+ -ARENERER
2017 2016
ZB-t% ZE-RE
Indirectly owned subiidiaries: (Continued)
BEEEHEAR: (8)
Xiamen DuKe Information Science & Technology Xiamen, the PRC, Provision of technology RMB11,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Duke") Limited liability company promotion and
\ y consultancy services .
EREREENBARAR ([EFEE]) HEEM BEREADH R RR AR #11,000,0007
HA R
Fujian HaoBang Real Estate Consulting & Agency ~ Fuzhou, the PRC, Property marketing & ~ RMB10,000,000 51% 51%
Co. Ltd. Limited liability company agency services .
BEHAFEXRUAKEARRF HEEM BEREEAA NEEHERRERSE  ARE10,000,0007T
Fujian FangKe Network Technology Corporation Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Provision of full-line RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
Limited liability company advertising services &
- - property marketing .
BEERABHENBERNHABB AT HEEM EREEAA RE2FMEERER ARES0,000,0007
NEEH
Fujian ShiFang KaiTai Advertisement Technology Fuzhou, the PRC, Provision of technology RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. Limited liability company promotion and
-~ B consultancy services
RETTHRERNBRARAR FEEM BREEAR REBMERR AR10,000,0007
& IR
Tian Pu Commerce Management Ltd. Hong Kong, Investment holding HKD100 51% -
Limited liability company ) (Note b)
EEMAEEERERAA EE BREERA REER 100/ 7T (M&Eb)
Fujian Tian Pu Commerce Management Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Property marketing & ~ RMB10,000,000 51% -
Limited liability company agency services (Note c)
BRETHBEERERRA TEEM BEREEAR NELHRRERSE  ARE10,000,0007T (BizEc)
Fujian ShiFang Real Estate Investment Consulting Fuzhou, the PRC, Property investment RMB50,000,000 51% -
Co., Ltd Limited liability company consultqn;y services ) (Note d)
BEETHHEREERABRRA mERN AREERA NEREDARY AR 50,000,000 (MzEd)
Ningbo Caijunhui Culture Media Co., Ltd. Ningbo, the PRC, Human resources HKD7,000,000 100% -
Limited liability company (Note e)
ERTEEXCEEERAR HEER EREEAA ANER 7,000,000 7T (Mizte)
Fuzhou Kungfu Town Scenic Area Development Fuzhou, the PRC, Tourism and UsD15,000,000 100% -
_Co,, Ltd. Limited liability company _ entertainment (Note f)
BNHXR I ERERREFRAR TEEM BEREEAA RERIREE 15,000,000 70 (HzES)
Special purpose entity:
HEENER:
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Beijing, the PRC, Provision of technology RMB1,000,000 100% 100%

Co., Ltd.

ARESEENEARAA

Limited liability company

RELR AREELA

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINA

NCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RAR M

17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17 BT (&)
Note a: the subsidiary was incorporated on 28 February 2017. Wita: ZMBARNIIR=_ZT—+tF=A
Z+ N\ BFEMK -
Note b: the subsidiary was incorporated on 17 March 2017. MeEb : ZWBARIR-_ZE—tF=A++t
Ha ez -
Note c: the subsidiary was incorporated on 22 May 2017. Witc: ZMBARIIR=_ZT—+tFHA
iy = g VAL
Note d: the subsidiary was incorporated on 24 May 2017. itd: ZMBAR IR =_ZT—+tFHA
Z+mEFMmE -
Note e: the subsidiary was incorporated on 11 August 2017. Mite: ZWBRARIRZ=ZZE—tFNA+—
Ha ez -
Note f: the subsidiary was incorporated on 27 August 2017. ekl : ZMBAR IR —+tFN\A
iy o ol = 21195 VAT
(a) Material non-controlling interests () EXRFERESR
2017 2016
—E—+HF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARETF T
By subsidiaries: BB AR
Fujian Fangke Network Technology BEREBPEE RN
Co. Ltd (“Fujian Fangke") BERAF([BEEE]) 14,401 13,375
Others Hh, (6,432) (7,683)
7,969 5,692

Summarised financial information on a

subsidiary with material non-controlling interests
Set out below are the summarised financial information
for a subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that

are material to the Group.

BREEAFEREZNVHELQ
ANMBERBRE
TXHNEEHAEEMSBEAN
F) FF 45 P 4 i O 5 Y I 8 R O B 7%
BRBE-

THERARDE —T—LFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRME

17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

17 WE~E (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) EXFERER (&)
Summarised balance sheets for Fujian Fangke BEEENEEABERHME
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-R
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥BT AR¥F T
Current: mE
Assets BE 27,172 26,385
Liabilities afE (3,267) (5,291)
Net current assets mEEEFE 23,905 21,094
Non-current: FEMED
Assets BE 5,486 6,203
Net assets BEFE 29,391 27,297
Summarised statements of comprehensive income BEEENZHNAEREE
for Fujian Fangke
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%® TR AREF T
Revenue I = 31,103 36,515
Profit before income tax B P45 250 A5 2,807 3,580
Income tax expense Frig®if X (713) (27)
Profit for the year F N5 2,094 3,553
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mE W= - -
Total comprehensive income EHEMEERE 2,094 3,553
Total comprehensive income allocated to D ECE JFIER RN 2 E
non-controlling interests W 2% 48 58 1,026 1,740

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests

180  SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RAR M

17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17 WE AR (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) EXFERER (&)
Summarised cash flow statements for Fujian BREENRERERBE
Fangke
2017 2016
—E—+HF AN
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Cash flows from operating activities &ZFEFBRESAKE

Cash generated from operations KEEBFER: 639 4,418
Interest received 2 A& 7 13
Income tax paid EASFTEH (28) =
Net cash generated from KEEBFEREFHE

operating activities 618 4,431
Net cash used in investing activities WEEHNTAIR S F58 (346) (110)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBFTARESFHE (688) -
Net (decrease)/increase in BEeRREEEER (OAY)

cash and cash equivalents SR (416) 4,321
Cash and cash equivalents FYHNReRRESFMEIEAE

at beginning of year 7,263 2,942
Cash and cash equivalents FROBERBESFEIER

at end of year 6,847 7,263

t+rERERAT —=—+44Hm 181



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB BRRMEE

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 18 IELEFTBH
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: BEMSHEBEITWOT :
2017 2016
—E—LF AN
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Deferred income tax liabilities EIEMERAEE
— to be recovered after more than — B REBE12E A &K=
12 months - 120
— to be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A AUk E 120 120
120 240
The movements on the deferred income tax liabilities are as BERMESHAEZESHAT
follows:
Intangible assets
BREE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
At 1 January n—HA—H 240 360
Recognised in the consolidated statement of R &G 2 HE W R NFER
comprehensive income (Note 25) (KF5E25) (120) (120)
At 31 December R+tZA=+—H 120 240
No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H HREE
respect of estimated tax losses of RMB111,547,000 as BB AR e EEERTR
at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB109,588,000) as it is AR AT R KA R IR & 18 - B 3 &
not probable that the relevant subsidiaries of the Group A R%111,547,00000 (Z T — /&
will generate taxable profit to utilise the tax losses in the AR #109,588,0007T ) & {5 5 ¢ T /&5 18
foreseeable future. Such tax losses have an expiry period of BRELEMEMEE - ZEMEBENE
five years. W EARE A A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRME

19 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 19 ESEMARIE HttENKE

ACCRUED EXPENSES

K BESHBE %
2017 2016
—2-—t& -—T-iF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued expenses:

Accrued utility expenses and other liabilities

B 5N 08 4,513 4,170

Ho Al A BOR R BRI S
et R HRMEHAS R

Hi & & 3,495 4,773

Accrued salaries and welfare BatE e MEF 5,675 5,653
Value added tax and other taxes payable 128 5 R E A FE A AR I8 3,716 3,798
Other payables E h FE 1 5RI8 10,517 10,204
Deposits from customers KEREPHIZES 816 816
Receipts in advance T8 Jc W B A B IE 6,245 6,384
30,464 31,628

34,977 35,798

Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly cash on HEFGTONREREEZEREINER
delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30 days RUAGERARNHK - EEHBELEBER
to 365 days after end of the month in which the relevant BE ABERBFNF30BE365H TS

purchase occurred.

THERARDE —T—LFFR

183



184

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

19 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 19 ESEMAFIE - HMEAFIE
ACCRUED EXPENSES (Continued) BT (&)
The aging analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice BESRNFEREEZAHNRES T
date was as follows: mE
2017 2016
—E—iF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
1 — 30 days 1230H 547 699
31 - 90 days 31£290H 598 532
Over 90 days 90H A E 3,368 2,939
4,513 4,170
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are all AEEZEZENFENREEZBUAA
denominated in RMB. R¥stE-
20 BANK BORROWINGS 20 |RITER
2017 2016
—ZE—tF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARBTT

Secured bank borrowings — current (Note () B ERRITER—BVHA
(B REG)) 9,113

11,350
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

SO B HRRME

B (&)

SRATE
The maturity of the above borrowings based on scheduled RRE %ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁlﬁﬁﬁ 7 B
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements and JEZ KB Z G Eul (BRI B an
excluding the repayment on demand clause is as follows: ™
2017 2016
—EB-tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETF T
Within 1 year —F A 2,229 2,229
Between 1 and 2 years —EWE 2,230 2,230
Between 2 and 5 years WERF 4,654 6,698
Beyond 5 years AFLE - 193
9,113 11,350
Notes (i): B EEG)
As at 31 December 2017, the mortgage loans were classified as RZB—tF+ZA=+—H BHRZEXRS
current liabilities due to the related loan agreements containing a B% \ﬁﬁﬁaﬁmﬁ% %@ﬁf;z?’fé g B
repayment on demand clause which gives the bank unconditional FTRITEGGHEAERBKRER  WEFIRB
right to call the loans at any time. BERDERAREBEE-

The mortgage loans are secured by the ownership rights of the
properties and the personal guarantee of Zheng Bai Ling and Zhang
Hui, a key management and the spouse of a key management of a

subsidiary of the Group.

The mortgage terms are 7 years and are denominated in RMB. The
mortgage loans are carried at quarterly adjusted floating interest
rate of 1.15 times the benchmark loan interest rate as prescribed
by the People’s Bank of China for loans of a similar length. The
effective interest rate for the year is 5.71% (2016: 5.81%) per

annum.

RBEFAZMEN BRI R AR EE — M
BRAMEIEEBABBHRMIZERAS
B BB SR BT (L A 8 A HE IR PRI H

RBFHMRIF UARBHE -ZFRIBE
FIRFEFE  BRAMNBRTEARBIIME
UFHERR TN ELEERF L1156
FRE - FNERFMNERST1% (ZT—X
F:581%)

THERAERAF FRELEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRME

21 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN 21 Hitw AR H bz
2017 2016
—E—+HF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Other income:
Compensation from customers
Government grants (note a)

Sundry income

Other gain:

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Note

HMBA:
KEEPHEE
BT # B (P sEa)
FIEUWA

Hapugs -
& —REKT B A A AU

Bt &

(@) The Group obtained and recognised as income government (a)
grants of RMB554,000 (2016: RMB383,000) from the Fujian

government authority for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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- 1,168
554 383
33 73
587 1,624
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

22 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Loss before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

22 BEMEETHMAX
W AT S BLAT B IBAEMB (B A) A TR

following: Bz ARK:
2017 2016
—EB—tF —E-R
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBF T
Cost of newspaper advertising WMAESEH A
~ Media costs — AR 4,008 16,792
Cost of printing services: Ef il A 745 A A
- Raw materials — R E 2,018 1,519
— Other costs — B A AR 435 298
Depreciation (Note 7) e (H3E7) 5,394 5,644
Amortisation (Note 8) B (FI5ES) 488 495
Auditor’s remuneration ZER & 3,675 3,610
Operating lease charges in respect of B LTHREFH
land and buildings KEHEWE 13,318 11,098
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - WERZHED
plant and equipment (Note 28(b)) B8 F 58 (M 3E28(b)) 222 292
Net (gain)/loss on disposals of HEBIEHEDERN
properties held for sale (W) /B EsE (753) 539
Provision for impairment of trade receivables, & 5 & U B BB B
net of trade receivables written back B E S EKFIERED
(Note 13) (PFEE13) (293) (1,703)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WEH Y2 BB KR
(Note 7) (BFE7) - 4,897
Provision for impairment of properties BIELEMERERE
held for sale (Note 11) (KFsE11) - 1,152
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) SNERSTR (W) F 5 11,584 (11,420)
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAMRAX (BREES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 23) <2 ) (FizE23) 43,531 45,751
Business tax BEM 437 1,070
THFERERATR —T—tFER 187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRME

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

23 EERANAX (BEESMH

%)

2017 2016
—2-—t& —T-iF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Salaries and other allowances & KCH fth # AL
Discretionary bonus 15T 4L
Defined contribution plan FEHNRETE
Social security costs HIRE R
Retirement scheme contribution R EI R

(a) Five highest paid individuals
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group included 3 directors (2016: 3 directors), whose
emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented
above and note 36. The emoluments paid/payable to
the remaining 2 (2016: 2 individuals) individuals during

the year ended 31 December 2017 were as follows:

(a)

41,382 42,174

- 1,215

239 196

1,206 1,300

704 866

43,531 45,751
EFEBREHFAL

BHE-_FE—+tF+-A=+—H
tFE - AEEREERFALE
BE=%2(ZZ— X "F:=Z8)&F"
BER S E X RMF36FT 25
WO RBR-RBE_T—+F
+TZA=+—RHLFE BENE
NBTMEZ (ZE—XRNF:ME)A
THMEmT

2017 2016
—2-—t& -—T-iF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARETT

Salaries and other allowances e MH e,
Defined contribution plan FEHRETE

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

23 EERANAX (BEESMH

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) £)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (o) EBEEH AL (&)
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, BHE-ZT—tER-ZZT—RE+=
the emoluments of the highest paid individuals of the A=+—HLEFE AEBESH
Group fall within the following bands: AT SN F TIEE :
Number of individuals
AE
2017 2016
—g-t% -z %
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 T2
1,000,0007% 7T 2 2
24 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) — NET 24 BBWA S (REK)-BE
2017 2016
—E—+HF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AR®EF T
Finance income: BRI
Interest income on short-term FEEIRIT I R AL B A
bank deposits 430 160
Interest income on available-for-sale AHEESRHEENTE
financial asset (Note 12) WA (BFEE12) 2,951 =
Total finance income M s 3381 160
Finance costs: B 75 B 7
Interest expense on available-for-sale AHTESHEENT S
financial asset (Note 12) WA (BFFE12) = 12,183
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITERZFBEFZ 585 719
Less: amounts capitalised on BoMEBEREERST
qualifying assets (Note 9(ii)) BARR 2 &8 (i) (585) (719)
Total finance costs MkAmes AN 12,183
Finance income/(costs) — net BBBA S (RAR) —F8E 3,381 (12,023)
TAFERERAR T —LFFHK 189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRME

25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

25 FERMAX, (ER)

2017 2016
—E—+tF R ANGS
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Current income tax expense BVERFT 1S 4 A 2
Mainland China enterprise income tax PR REDSERER
— Current tax expense —BRVEATRIE A X 833 28

833 28

Deferred income tax credit BEMGHER (120) (120)
713 (92)

The Group has no assessable income arising in or derived REERBEZ-E—+tFR_ZE—RF

from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2017 TZA=ET—RALEFELARARBEEEL

and 2016. HEFERTIMA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RAR M

25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 25 EEHEX (E&e) (&)
(Continued)
The taxation on the Group's loss before income tax differs AEBERMAMEHAEENRIBRRAE
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the AREEREERENEG 0 E 8% F /0
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the BB EMFEREwmeB o BNES
consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as U
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF R ANGS
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Loss before income tax BR P15 B Al B 18 (55,618) (56,484)
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable REARNSEREER
to profits of the entities in the respective F i8R M #) 3 5 T X
jurisdictions TEHTIA (10,263) (11,722)
Tax effects of: LTHEENREZE:
Income not subject to tax BAHTWA (841) (1,975)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR A 8,922 6,642
Tax losses for which no deferred income AR IR IE PG T
tax asset was recognised BENVIIEERE 3,408 7,992
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax B A Z A RERE
losses 1A B 18 (513) (1,029)
713 (92)
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 18.5% (2016: MEFHERAKER185% T—K
20.8%). The decrease is mainly caused by the incorporation F:208%) HMETKFEARET=E
of certain subsidiaries in Hong Kong which were entitled to EREERBENNEATNEBTM
lower applicable tax rate. BT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRME

26 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share for the years is calculated by

dividing the loss attributable to owners of the

26 BRE1E
(a) B

FRANFREABRIIZANR R
BEREBBEBAFACEITES

(b) Diluted
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has no dilutive
potential ordinary shares during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: same).

27 DIVIDEND

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its

incorporation.
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Company by the weighted average number of ordinary MRNEFHEETE -
shares in issue during the year.
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Loss attributable to owners of RNRAFIFTEEEILERE
the Company (RMB’000) (AR®EFIT) (56,493) (57,129)
Weight average number of BEITIR G0 IR B
shares in issue, including bonus (BRaMTxE) (TR)
element (thousands) 1,448,330 1,301,178
Basic loss per share (RMB per share) BREAXREE
(BIRAR®) (0.0390) (0.0439)
(b) #%

SIRIE R AR B (TSN
BRI DB BR A A
B8 B0 BB IR S
BE-F—LEF-A=+—AL
FE ORARLEAREEEYE
HEBR (T ER) -

27 BB
KA ) B AL AR B B R (AT AR
=

o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a)

SO BRI

28 BEREBRME

Cash used in operations (o) REXEKFTARS
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
B 5F AR TR ARBF T
Loss before income tax BETE AT E B (55,618) (56,484)
Adjustments for: RV R BEEDAE:
Depreciation e 7 5,394 5,644
Amortisation 5 8 488 495
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE R
plant and equipment HENEETE 22 222 292
Net reversal of for impairment of B 5 RN IR E &
trade receivables b 22 (293) (1,703)
Provision for impairment of HIELEMERERE
properties held for sale 22 - 1,152
Write off of property, plant and WHME BEREE
equipment 7 - 4,897
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) on RE R INEEER
operating activities (W) 22 11,584 (11,420)
Finance income 3 ON 24 (3,381) (160)
Finance costs B TS AR 24 = 12,183
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries B A R S 21 = (3)
Changes in working capital: LEEREH:
— Trade receivables —E S REWE 9,977 6,440
- Inventories -8 (312) 4,671
— Prepayments, deposits and other —BRRE -Ze Rk
receivables H b UL FRIA (747) (1,655)
- Amounts due from related parties —JEW RSB A LA (448) 230
— Trade payables —E S ENTE 343 (318)
— Other payables and accrued —H b B IE R
expenses FEET 2 (1,294) (10,190)
- Amounts due to related parties — [ REE A L F0E (419) (837)
Cash used in operations RexBmARS (34,504) (46,766)

THERBRAA —T—LFEFR

193



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRRME

28 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Disposal of property, plant and equipment
In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds

from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

28 HERBRHE (&)

HEWE BERRE
RERERERTHENE K&
REREORBFER:

2017 2016
—EF-tF —ERF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Net carrying amount (Note 7)
Net loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (Note 22)

Cash consideration from disposal of

property, plant and equipment

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, net cash

outflow on disposal of subsidiaries comprise:

BRMEFEE (MaE7)
HEWE - BE KERED
B8 FRE (MisE22)

HEME BB EREN

571 1,230
(222) (292)
349 938
HEMHE AT

AGIRERERTHEHEAAD
Be R EE A

2017 2016
—2-t& -—T-iF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Cash consideration received (Note 32)

Cash and cash equivalents disposed

(Note 32)

Net cash outflow from disposal of
subsidiaries included in the cash flows

from investing activities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RAR M

28 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH 28 REREKRMEE (E)
FLOWS (Continued)
(d) Non-cash transactions (d) FELXH
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the principal HE-_Z—R"F+A=+—H1
non-cash transaction is the reclassification of properties FE - FEZIRERHAEHED
held for sale to property, plant and equipment. EMEEFSBRME BERF
e
(e) Net debt reconciliation le) EBFHERHE
The following section sets out an analysis of net debt N TEINEBFEIITRE ZMEF
and the movements in net debt for each of the years EEBFENE
presented.
2017 2016
—E—tF A
RMB’000 RMB'000
Net debt B FHE ARBT T AREEF T
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) RekBEeSEEE
(PiEE14) 60,178 182,833
Borrowings EEN
— repayable within one year (Note 20) —R—FRNEE (FF7E20) (2,229) (2,229)
Borrowings EEN
- repayable after one year (Note 20) —R—F&EE (fiE20) (6,884) (9,121)
Net debt B %5 51,065 171,483

Cash  Borrowings  Borrowings

and cash due within due after
equivalents 1 year 1 year Total

RekEE R-FR RKR—F#
LEER DNHAMNER DHNER #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR

Net debt as at R-ZE-—R"E+-A=+—H

31 December 2016 R ERFE 182,833 (2,229) (9,121) 171,483
Cash flows Reng (115,286) 2,237 = (113,049)
Foreign exchange adjustments /)& 582 (7,369) = = (7,369)
Other non-cash movements HibIFRG &) - (2,237) 2,237 =
Net debt as at R-ZE-t&+=-A=+-H

31 December 2017 MEKTE 60,178 (2,229) (6,884) 51,065
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BB HRRME

29 COMMITMENTS

196

(a) Operating lease commitments
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 A
(o) REHREXE
FARELLHENBRZEEE

B REINT
2017 2016
—E—+HF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Not later than 1 year —FUT 12,952 12,425

Later than 1 year and not later than —FUAERAFNUT
5 years 3,351 14,957
16,303 27,382

30 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements,
parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other
entities and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those parties
are individuals. Parties are also considered to be related if

they are subject to common control.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms mutually negotiated between the

Group and the respective related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RAR M

30 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

The directors of the Company are of the view that the (a)
following companies/individuals were related parties

that had transactions or balances with the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2017:

Name

1.2

30 MEALXRE (&)

BRgpHBEAL:

Relationship with the Group
B B 9B R

ERBEERR ATRRMEA
BRBE_ZT—tHF+t-_A=1—
BULEFEREAKEETR S HF

Mr. Tsui Yiu Ming, Siuming

"B (Bl& %R/NB) A&
Mr. Chen Zhi

BREZE

Ms. Zheng Shou Ling

B <F R 2+

Fujian ShiFang Digitial Technology Co., Ltd

BE+THBBRMARAF

Fujian Lanting Network Technology Holding
Limited Company

BEMEARMRKROBRAR

Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu

SRS A

Mr. Hong Pei Feng

HIFERE

Executive director of the Company/Chief Executive
Officer of the Group'

ARBATESE AEBTHREAE

Executive director of the Company/Former Chief
Executive Officer of the Group?

ARBRITES REBEFERERITE?

Spouse of the Executive director of the Group

REBERTEFHNER

Controlled by the Executive director of the Group

HAEERTEEZES

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group

AEE-—ZXMBARINEEZERR

Former executive director of the Company?
RABRTMITE SR

Former executive director of the Company*

ARBIRIAITES

THERARDE —T—LFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRME

30 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(a) (Continued)

Name

.23

30 BEALXRS ()
(@) (&)

Relationship with the Group
BEAEBANER

Mr. Yu Shi Quan

REFERL

Mr. Chen Wei Dong
BRIZEER AL

Ms. Chen Min
BREZ L

Mr. Zhou Xu Xiang
ERAEE

Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited
BEEAEEERERAR
Ms. Chan Ching Yi
BREFEL L

Ms. Chen Xiao Min
RN GE

Mr. Zheng Bo Ling
EmEe L

Mr. Cai Jian Quan
BEELE

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren
BEEEE

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry
EABAXE

The above names of certain related parties companies

represented the best effort by management of the

Executive director of the Company/Chief Financial
Officer of the Group

ARBATES AEBERVBE

Non-executive director of the Company

RRRERITES

Non-executive director of the Company

ARBFHITESR

Former non-executive director of the Company?®

RRFRIERITESS

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group

AEE-ZRMBARNEERR

Key management of the Group

AEBXIEERASR

Key management of the Group

AEBEXEEEAE

Key management of the Group

AEEFEEBAR

Independent non-executive director of the Company

RABBYIFATES

Independent non-executive director of the Company

RRABBYLIFARITES

Independent non-executive director of the Company

ARBBILIFNITES

FIEFREEAL RAMNEXH
MEHARBEEBNERXAEE

Company in translating their Chinese names as they do HEEmEE RAREEALS

not have official English names.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)
Note:

1. Appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 29 January
2016.

2. Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 29 January
2016.
3. Resigned on 25 February 2016.

4. Resigned on 29 January 2016.

5. Resigned on 17 March 2016.

RO R MIEE

30 MEALXRE (&)

(a)

(%)
GEE

1. RIZE—R"F-AZt+hBEZ
ERITHEBE -

2. RZET— /‘*\ﬁ—ﬂ:‘?‘ﬂlﬂ%ﬁ{
% °

3. R-ZE—XRF_A-_+HB#&

4. RZTE—RNRF-—AZt+hBE

5. RIZE—RFE=ZA+tBEfE-

Transactions with related parties: (b) EREATETHRS:
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the B B 75 S 2 ELfh 30 o9 BT #2 BB 25 1 -
financial statements, the following transactions were REBRBE-_ZT—+tF+=A
undertaken by the Group with related parties during =t BIFEEAEATHETIA
the year ended 31 December 2017: TR5:
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBT T ARETFT
Continuing transactions: RERS:
Key management compensation FTEEERABFHH 8,389 8,434
Rental expenses to a related party m—uEEATHHASRAX 465 -
8,854 8,434
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

30 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BEALXRS (&)
(Continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EBREATEENER
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the balances are RZBE—+tFR_F—R"F+=A
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. =+—B #HRAEEKR 2ERA

SR -

2017 2016
—EF-tF ZERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Amounts due from related parties PEUBEE A T FR1E

- non-trade —-¥E5
A non-controlling shareholder of REEMH B AR
a subsidiary of the Group FEERR AR R 470 -
Key management of the Group REBEFZERAE 110 17
Directors of the Group REHEES 160 275
740 292
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the balances are RZE—EFR_E—RF+=A
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. =—t+—H #8AEER - 28 NE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

30 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BEALXRE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c) BEBAEALTTFEMNLES (&)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Amounts due to directors: ERESRE:
Mr. Chen Zhi RESLLE 9 19
Mr. Tsui Yiu Ming Siuming B (Rl 1R/NBA) & 11 -
Mr. Yu Shi Quan RETERE - 10
Mr. Hong Pei Fang T S A - 36
20 65
Amounts due to related parties: ERBEALTRE:
Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited EZHEEEAR QA 127 22
Fujian ShiFang Digitial Technology BETABIBENBERAQA
Co., Ltd 3 24
Ms. Zheng Shou Ling 8 <F e 2 - 325 95
475 206
Amount due to a related party EBR—EBEALTRE
- non-trade (non-current portion) —¥ES (FERBES)
A non-controlling shareholder of TEE-ZRMBRARMHN—F
a subsidiary of the Group IR E - 688
The balance due to a non-controlling shareholder is FER —EIEERRR N AR AEIKT - £
unsecured, interest-free, with no fixed repayment term BREETFENRLY WEKAEBRHZA
and repayable upon mutual agreement between the IR R E R EE -

Group and the non-controlling shareholder.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

31

32

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the

required contributions under the scheme.

The total contributions incurred in this connection for
the year ended 31 December 2017 were approximately
RMB704,000 (2016: RMB866,000). No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution

payable by the Group in the future years.

CONSIDERATIONS FROM DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2016

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
entered into sale and purchase agreements with
independent third parties to dispose of controlling
equity interests in certain subsidiaries, namely Guangxi
ShiFang, Fuzhou Aohai, Greatest Ocean, Hung Hing To,
ShiFangCe, Xiamen DingCe, Liaoning Aohai, Guizhou
ShiFang HanDing, ShiFang YaQi and Beijing HongXinTu,
(together, the

considerations of RMB30,000 (“Disposal”).

“Disposed Companies”) for total cash

The Disposal was completed during the year ended 31
December 2016.
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32
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32 CONSIDERATIONS FROM DISPOSAL OF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended (a)

31 December 2016 (Continued)

The aggregate net assets of Guizhou QianZhong at

32 HEWB A RAWKE

NEB8E=-_ZE—X<E+=-B=+—

AIEFEHEMNBLR (&)

EMBHPREERNFEERLEN

disposal were as follows: ™
2016
—E-RF
RMB'000
ARETFT
Net assets disposed of: CHEREE:
Prepayments, deposits and other T RIE - R K H e Yk IE
receivables 988
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS FEMEER 3
Other payables and accrued expenses HAth F& A FRIE N AT R X (923)
Income tax payables FET TS HY (68)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 21) e —EH B AR A (FFEE21) 3
3
Satisfied by: ZRHAR:
— Cash considerations —HaRE 3
— Non-cash considerations —FBRENRE -
3
Net cash outflow arising on HEMBARMEENR SR FH
disposal of the subsidiary
Cash consideration received BEWBREERE 3

Cash and cash equivalents disposed

Net cash outflow on disposal of the
subsidiary included in cash flows from
investing activities (Note 28(c))

BEHERERREFEERB

HEKMBARMNIRE 7L EE
FFAKREBEREMBEERE
(Bt sE28(c))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

33

34

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” to determine
when should contingent liabilities be recognised, which

requires significant judgement.

A contingent liability will be disclosed when a possible
obligation has arisen, but its existence has to be confirmed
by future events outside the Group’s control, or when it
is not possible to calculate the amount. Realisation of any
contingent liabilities not currently recognised or disclosed
could have a material impact on the Group's financial

position.

The Group reviews for any significant outstanding litigations
in order to assess the need for provisions. Among the factors
considered are the nature of the litigation, legal processes
and potential level of damages, the opinions and views
of the legal counsel, and the management’s intentions to
respond to the litigations. To the extent the estimates and
judgements do not reflect the actual outcome, this could
materially affect the results for the year and the financial

position.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had no

material contingent liabilities.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company issued 289,666,000 shares at HK$0.145
each on 25 January 2018 (representing 16.7% of the
total enlarged ordinary share capital issued) to not less
than six independent placees procured by the placing
agent. Net proceeds from the share issuance amounted to
HK$41,057,000 (approximately RMB33,467,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 35 ARFNEERBRRHES

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )]
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7 ARET T AREFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Available-for-sale financial asset A ESHEE 12 84,726 81,775
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARIMKRE 17 = =
Deposit for a proposed acquisition BB EENEZR 9(iv) 28,315 =
113,041 81,775
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FRIE F H h g Uy
KIE 118 187
Amounts due from subsidiaries i A= NETE ] 71,070 55,703
Amount due from a director Bl —REERIE 160 270
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEEE 27,799 161,858
99,147 218,018
Total assets BEE 212,188 299,793
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to KRABIFMEEEGESR
owners of the Company
Share capital fig A 123,919 123,919
Share premium % 7 % (B 816,907 816,907
Other reserves HibfEE a (7,063) (7,063)
Accumulated deficits RETE AL a (724,456) (650,956)
Total equity RREE 209,307 282,807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

35 ARFMEERERRRERSE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B (&)
(Continued)
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 7 AR¥T R AREFIT
LIABILITIES g8&
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b &N 5008 2,745 1
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN EENGIE ] 136 16,985
______ 2,881 16,986
Total liabilities e s 2,881 16,986
Total equity and liabilities EaREEEH 212,188 299,793

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the

Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and was signed on its

behalf:

Siuming Tsui

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB RRM

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 35 APl EEEBERERESE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B (&)
(Continued)
Note a: Reserve movement of the Company ifita : ARBIMREBE
Accumulated Other
deficits reserves
HitE Mt Hib @&
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AREFT ARBF T
At 1 January 2016 R—ZT—X"F—H—H (624,218) =
Loss for the year FAERE (26,738) =
Fair value loss on an available-for-sale At ESMEEZ ANEEIE
financial asset - (7,063)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZT—XF+_A=+—HK

—T—+F¥—A—H (650,956) (7,063)
Loss for the year FREE (73,500) =
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—tF+=-_A=+—8H (724,456) (7,063)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(A)

Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

The remuneration of every directors and the chief

executive is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

36 EENmRER (FE (A F

RG> (58622%F) 5383k
DNF (HBEESNHEER) RH
(B622CE)RERBETRAY
RENKE)

EERITHRABNME
BEEERTHREAZNF S50
T

(A)

BE-_Z—+tF+=-BA=+—-HL
FE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

REARE (FRRALARENBAR) ESHRUENBHEAIERNAE:

Emoluments
paid or
receivable

in respect

of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the affairs

Remunerations
paid or
receivable

in respect of

Employer's
Estimated contribution to

money  a retirement accepting of the company
Discretionary Housing value of benefit office as or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance other benefits scheme director  undertaking Total
HEZE
BBEE
RREHH
(il PEESS
RER RESES ARONEM
HitERIN FEN BABAY  REEAI
Name #E e #e BiEEA BERE (fTEMEE BIfE  BAWEN  EUKHE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chen Zhi REEE (HEBR

(Former Chairman and ERHTE WiE)

CEO, Note (a)) 180 1,620 - - - - - - 1,800
Mr. Yu Shiquan RERLE 180 720 - - 36 8 - - 944
Mr. Tsui Yiu Ming Siuming RIER (R 1NA)

(CEO, Note (b)) EE(TRER

Kritb)) 217 2,896 - - - 179 - - 3292
Non-executive directors E2:Kiy £
Mr. Chen Wei Dong REREE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Ms. Chen Min Rext 120 - - - - - - - 120
Independent and BUFHTES

non-executive directors
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BAECEE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry B REA %4 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jianquan BRERE 120 - - - - - - - 120
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(Continued)

(A)

Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016:

RO R MIEE

36 EERNmRER (FE (AF
RG> (58622%F) 5383k
DNF (HBEESNHEER) RH
(B622CE)RERBETRAY
RENKE) (&)

(A) EBRTBARNHE (F)

BE-®-AE+-A=+—HL
R

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

REARE (TRRALAIENBAR ESARENRBEAARRNHE

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect

of director's

other services

Remunerations  in connection

paid or with the

receivable  management

Employer's i respect of  of the affairs of

Estimated ~ contribution to accepting  the company
Discretionary Housing money value of a retirement office  or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as director  undertaking Total
HEE
BHER
ARARA
il PEES S
RINER MEXES AREMAL
EfpEHE e BuUERE  REERT
Name # e ¢ [yl EREY  AHEREE EIfHR  ERNEH  RUOB2 @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  AR®Tr  ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TR  ARETR
Executive directors HiES
Mr. Chen Zhi REAE (FERR

(Former Chairman and ERGAE M)

CEO, Note (a)) 135 1,665 - - - - - - 1,800
Mr. Hong Pei Feng (Note () HkEB%&4 (HiE(0) - - 920 - - - - = 920
Mr. Zhang Tie Zhu (Note (d)) ~ R&H &4 (M) - Y] 500 - 3 1 - - 546
Mr. Yu Shiguan RiFERE 135 765 = = 36 8 = = 944
Mr. Teui Yiu Ming Siuming e (Rl5: 08)

(CEO, Note (b)) R (fRes

Kistb) 1,880 748 133 = = 47 = = 2,808
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Chen Wei Dong REREE 120 - - - - - - -
Ms. Chen Min Rext 120 - - - - - - -
Independent and BUFHTES

non-executive directors
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BELEE 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry BRI %4 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jianquan BRiErt 120 - - - - - - - 120
Mr. Zhou Xu Xiang (Note (e)  FBSIEAE (M) 2% - = = = - = - 2%

THFERBRLAA —T—LFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRMEE

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36 EENERER (T8 (2 F

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION RBl) (8622F ) 383k -
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES RF (HEEENRER) RO
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (8622GE)REABLHRA
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT RENEKE) (&)

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERTHARZNMS (&)
(Continued)
Notes: B 5
(a)  Resigned as CEO of the Company on 29 January 2016 (@ RZZE—R"F-—AZThHEE
and resigned as Chairman of the Board on 25 February ARBEEBHITE RZT—RF
2016 “RA-THHBEEFEXRE
(b)  Appointed as CEO of the Company on 29 January 2016 by RZZE—R"F—A-+hBEZ
- PANYNCIES UG-
() Resigned on 29 January 2016 (00 RZE-—RFE—HAZ+HhAHEMAT
(d)  Resigned on 25 February 2016 (d) RZE—XR"E_A-—+HAHE
(e)  Re-designed as a non-executive director on 20 February (&) RZE—RF-_A=-THAMEHF
2016 and resigned on 17 March 2016 BITEERR_ZE—X~"F=A
T+t BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any

retirement benefits during the year (2016: nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any

termination benefits during the year (2016: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties

for making available directors’ services (2016: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There is no other loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, bodies corporate
controlled by and entities connected with all directors
of the Company as at 31 December 2017 (2016:Nil).

RO R MIEE

36 EERNmRER (FE (AF
RG> (58622%F) 5383k
DNF (HBEESNHEER) RH
(B622CE)RERBETRAY
RENKE) (&)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

EERNKER
FA-BEEECRRKBKERE
RKEN (ZF—RF &) -

ESRLEREERN
FA-HEEEC WK KRR
EARILEEREEN(ZF—RF:
&) -

RREHESRBEAE=FXM
HRE
RBE-_FT-—tHF+-_A=1—
BLEFE ARr#ERREHRES
RBAEFAE=TXNRE(ZF
—NEF ) e

FRUES SZSESEZAN
EFABRERZEESNHER
BAZBANER EERRH
HRZHER
R_E—+t&+-_A=+—8"#
BERANES ZARAMEBEES
BRI EAEEBRAABIMBEES
MEEEBAS R ANEMER.
EERREMZGLHE (ZT—K
Fifm)o

THFERBRLAA —T—LFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OB SRR MIEE

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36 EENERER (T8 (2 F
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION RBl) (8622F ) 383k -
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES RF (HEEENRER) RO
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (8622GE)REABLHRA
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT RENEKE) (&)

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (F) EERXRZ ZHIASGHMNEKX
arrangements or contracts =
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts A R B8 6F 1A {A] R 1 3 8 1 1] B
in relation to the Group's business to which the RARRAEBEBET L MARA]
Company was a party and in which a director of the EXEESHAERAEARRNE
Company had a material interest, whether directly or ARG REEHEHTFE -

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.
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